Filed
FEg 09

court
Clerk of S ‘%

No. 82615-3
(Ct. App. No. 28375-1-1I)

SUPREME COURT
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner/Appellant,
V.

GARY DAVENPORT, MARTHA LOFGREN, WALT PIERSON,
SUSANNAH SIMPSON, and TRACY WOLCOT,

Respondents.

s

M4
3

ANSWER TO WEA’S PETITION TO REVIEW

e

g

STEVEN T. O’BAN
WSBA No. 17265 o
Ellis, Li & McKinstry PLEE
4900 Two Union Square =
601 Union Street

Seattle, Washington 98101
(206) 682-0565

Attorneys for Respondents

W duy 0 Y OTYHOE A2
nz 8 WY <l 4346002



Pl

< B F

TABLE OF CONTENTS

IDENTITY OF RESPONDENTS ..o 1
COUNTER-STATEMENT OF ISSUES ... 1
ALTERNATIVE COUNTER-STATEMENT OF ISSUES ....... 2
COUNTER-STATEMENT OF THE CASE.........coiinnn. 3
A. Procedural HiStOIY.....cocoerioreremercemenieniemtessinciseesisssssesessosssnsssssenssnes 3
B. Factual Background ... 5
REASONS REVIEW SHOULD BE REJECTED .............ccceec. 5
A.V Division Two’s Davenport Decision Does Not Conflict with Its
Decision in CriSman .........ovvvnnnn. et 5
B. Davenport Does Not Conflict with Nelson v. Appleway ............. 9
C. The Davenport Decision Does Not Conflict with This Court’s
Opinion il PDC V. WEA .o 10
D. The Davenport Decision Does Not Conflict With This Court’s
Opinion in Nugget Properties v. County of Kittitas ...........c...... 12
E. WEA Has Failed to Show A Substantial Public Interest........... 15

IF REVIEW IS ACCEPTED, THIS COURT SHOULD
CONSIDER OTHER CLAIMS DISMISSED BY THE

COURT OF APPEALS ... 17
A. The Trial Court Properly Ruled that Teachers Have an Implied
Right of Action Under Bennett .........ceneinerieninnnninnisnannn, 17
B. The Trial Court Properly Ruled That Teachers’ Conversion
Claim IS Valid ..voveveeerreeeirieeineie st ssnesasasanasas 19
CONCLUSION.......ooemtreerieisinsinesssintssessessisssesessesseessssssisassssssssssssess 20

11



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES
CASES

Bennett v. Hardy
113 Wn.2d 912, 784 P.2d 1258 (1990) ...cevvvievvveeccenircrirrinnes 17,18, 19

Board of Regents of Univ. of Wash. v. Seattle
108 Wn.2d 545, 741 P.2d 11 (1987) cvveeeerrererrerereerececcensiosinsinnns 13

Castle Homes and Development, Inc. v. The City of Brier
76 Wn.App. 95, 882 P.2d 1172 (1994) c.cvvveiiiccrcicinrcirinienns 14

Crisman v. Pierce County Fire District
115 Wn.App. 16, 60 P.3d 652 (2002) .........ccccco.... 1,5,6,7,8,9,15,16,19

Davenport v. Washington Education Association
~Wash.App_, 197 P.3d 686 (2008) ....ccoevvvrrirvervcrriricicicecicnnne passim

Davenport v. Washington Education Association
__US. ,127S.Ct. 2372, 168 L.Ed.2d 71 (2007).4, 5,6, 13,18, 19

De Boe v. Prentice Packing and Storage
172 Wn. 514,20 P.2d 1107 (1933) e 15

Nelson v. Appleway Chevrolet, Inc.
106 Wn.2d 173, 175 P.3d 847 (2007). ceveevveveeriecircveicrinnnns 1,8,9,10

Nelson v. McClatchy Newspapers, Inc.
131 Wn.2d 523, 936 P.2d 1123,
cert. denied, 522 U.S. 866 (1997) .cvvevievrccvirrreeiieeas 7,16, 18

Nugget Properties v. County of Kittitas
71 Wn.2d 760, 431 P.2d 580 (1967) wccovvvvrrvevcrrirircicicirincanes 12,14, 15

Public Disclosure Commission v. Washington Education Association
117 Wn.App. 625, 71 P.3d 244 (2003) ..cvvmvrrneerrcnerreecnreeseennens 4,12

Public Disclosure Commission v. Washington Education Association
156 Wn.2d 543, 130 P.3d 352 (2000) ....ovovvvvvuerrrciierrncicincnnnnes passim

111



Robinson v. City of Seattle

119 Wn.2d 34, 830 P.2d 318 (1992) ..cuvevrvicvrrivievcievinieias 12,13
Seekamp v. Small

39 Wn.2d 578, 237 P.2d 489 (1951) wceeerereecernrsniciciscnnnceciccainnns 4
Voelker v. Joseph

62 Wn.2d 429, 383 P.2d 301(1963) ...cviercrcniciecceenccnins 13,14
White Pass Co. v. St. John

71 Wn.2d 156, 427 P.2d 398 (1967) cceeeverrecvcinisniciiiiicicnscnenenns 14
STATUTES
ROW 4217 ettt s s ss s s eas passim
RCW 42.17.130.ccceerieereieircecenieneiieviessssasssssssssssssssessssassasssssssssesesss s sanes 6,19
RCW 42.17.400(4) c.ovoreeereieeeireireiseeseeseasmsesesissesseesseeessesenosssssessessesssssssssssses 2,3,19
RCW 42.17.610 ettt eescsss e ssses st ssenes 19
ROW 42.17.620 et ssesessessasssssssi s sssssssssssesssse e 19
ROW 42.17.680(2) concerrvreereveireeeieereeneiessesseeseseaseassasassscesesasessessesscsssssssssssssssesnssenns 7
RCW 42.17.760.....ccrerccrrecnnn. ettt passim
RCW 82.04.500.....cueirerrrerrereceeceernieirescasmsesesssesesesssssssessissssesssssasasssssssssns 8,9
OTHER AUTHORITIES
CR L2ttt passim
Restatement (Second) of Torts, §228 (1963) .c.ocvwvceevnivnenninniiiiinivecnninns 20
Restatement (Third) of ReStitution §1....ccvviniiiviniiinininieencenesiesnnns 10

Restatement (Third) of Restitution § 18 at 281-82 (Tentative Draft No. 1)10

v



I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENTS

Gary Davenport, Martha Lofgren, Walt Pierson, Susannah
Simpson, and Tracy Walcot (“Teachers”), individually and on behalf of all
other nonmembers similarly situated, the prevailing parties in the Court of
Appeals, Division II, and plaintiffs in Thurston County Superior Court,
request that this Court deny review. |
II. COUNTER-STATEMENT OF ISSUES

A. Has the Washington Education Association (WEA) failed
to show a conflict between the Court of Appeal’s decision in Davenport
and Crisman, where the common law restitution claim recognized by
Davenport is distinct and stands alone from a private right of action
rejected in Crisman and, unlike Crisman, RCW 42.17.760 (§76O)1 clearly
protects individual interests in addition to the public’s interest in fair
elections?

B. Has WEA failed to show a conflict between Davenport and
this Court’s decisions in Nelson v. Appleway, where they are factually
distinguishable: Davenport addressed the WEA’s unlawful wuse of
nonmember wages and Nelson v. Appleway addressed the car dealership’s
unlawful receipt of the customer’s funds to pay the dealership’s tax
obligation?

C. Has WEA failed to show a conflict between Davenport’s

recognition of a restitution claim and this Court’s opinion in PDCv. WEA,

! All references to RCW 42.17.760, unless otherwise indicated, are to former §760. The
statute was amended by the Legislature in 2007.



where PDC v. WEA did not reach the issue of the lawfulness of WEA’s
use of nonmembers’ wages for politics because it invalidated §760 on the
ground the statute unconstitutionally presumed nonmember dissent?

D. On an appeal of a CR 12 decision denying dismissal, has
WEA carried its heavy burden of showing each element of equitable
estoppel based on its assertion that Teachers acquiesced to WEA’s
unauthorized use of their wages?

E. Has WEA failed to demonstrate a ‘“‘substantial public
interest” justifying acceptance of review, where its petition is devoid of
any argument or citation, the State has resolved its enforcement action and
this suit will likely be the last of its kind in light of the 2007 amendment to
§760?

III. ALTERNATIVE COUNTER-STATEMENT OF ISSUES

If this Court accepts review, Teachers request that this Court
reverse the Court of Appeals on the following grounds, and sustain the
trial court:

A. Do Teachers have a private right of action for a violation of
§760, as they are within a group of people the statute was designed to
protect and Teachers have complied with the notice requirements of RCW
42.17.400(4)7

B. Do Teachers have a conversion claim, where the WEA
used Teachers’ wages for political purposes in direct contravention of the

authority retained by Teachers over their wages?



IV. COUNTER-STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Procedural History

Pursuant to RCW 42.17.400(4), by letter dated August 11, 2000,
Teachers and the Evergreen Freedom Foundation notified then
Washington State Attorney General Christine Gregoire and County
Prosecutors that there was reason to believe WEA had violated §76O.2 By
written stipulation dated September 25, 2000, the WEA admitted it had
received and deposited agency shop fees into its general fund, expended
money from that fund for political purposes without nonmembers’
authorization and that it had committed multiple violations of §760.°> One
month later, the Public Disclosure Commission (PDC) commenced an
enforcement action against the WEA seeking penalties and injunctive
relief, but expressly stating it was not seeking the return -of individual
agency fee payers’ funds.* That case was tried to the court in May 2001
resulting in substantial penalties, including for willful violations, and
permanent injunctive relief. The trial court stated in its Letter Opinion,
incorporated into its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, that it
“declines to rule on issues involving repayment or restitution of amounts
owed to individual fee payers.” Agency fee payers were without a

remedy.

>A-1to Al-8

> A-9t0 A-10

* Davenport v. Washington Education Association, 197 P.3d 686, 690 (2008). All
references to the Davenport case herein are to this decision of the Court of Appeals, Div.
Two.

° A-18 to A-19



In March 2001, Teachers filed this class action alleging that WEA
collected from them agency shop fees but failed to obtain their affirmative
authorization and used the funds for political purposes in violation of
§760. Teachers sought recovery of the political portion of the fees.®
WEA removed the case to federal district court.” Ultimately the district
court rejected removal and retuned the case to Thurston County Superior
Court.® WEA moved to dismiss Teachers® private right of action and
conversion claims under CR 12. The trial court denied the WEA’s motion
to dismiss and certified the class.

WEA sought and was granted discretionary review of the trial
court’s rulings. Argument was consolidated with the WEA’s appeal of the
PDC judgment. Without reaching the issues raised by the trial court’s
denial of WEA’s CR 12 motion, the Court of Appeals invalidated §760 on
federal constitutional grounds.9 This Court affirmed.'’ In June 2007, the
U.S. Supreme Court reversed.!’  In October 2007, this Court remanded

the instant case to the Court of Appeals, which after re-argument and

8 Teachers pled sufficient facts to support a claim for restitution based on WEA’s
unlawful retention of agency shop fees. See Seekamp v. Small, 39 Wn.2d 578, 583, 2377
P.2d 489 (1951).

7 A-20 to A-23

 A-24 to A-25

® Public Disclosure Commission v. Washington Education Association., 117 Wn.App.
625, 71 P.3d 244 (2003), hereinafter, WEA v. PDC.

1 public Disclosure Commission v. Washington Education Association, 156 Wn.2d 543,
130 P.3d 352 (2006), hereinafter, PDC v. WEA.

" Davenport v. Washington Education Association, __U.S. __, 127 S.Ct. 2372, 2379,
168 L.Ed.2d 71 (2007)



supplemental briefing, affirmed the trial court, except to modify the class
certification to reflect a three year statute of limitations.'?

On December 3, 2008, PDC and WEA entered into a Stipulation
and Amended Judgment in which WEA agreed to pay nearly $1 million,
none of which will be used to compensate Teachers for the WEA’s
unlawful use of agency shop fees for the period covered by this Jawsuit."?

B. Factual Background.

4

The facts are sufficiently set forth in the Davenport decision. !

V. REASONS REVIEW SHOULD BE REJECTED

A. Division Two’s Davenport Decision Does Not Conflict
with Its Decision in Crisman.

This Court observed that §760 encumbers the use of agency shop
fees collected from nonmembers by prohibiting their expenditure for
political purposes unless the union obtains their affirmative
authorization.'” The statute confers on individual nonmembers, not the
public, the right to authorize or withhold such authorization. That this
authority is held by the individual agency fee payer is to be expected as
the protected interests are the nonmember’s First Amendment interests.'®
“As applied to public-sector unions, §760 is not fairly described as a

restriction on how the union can spend “its” money; it is a condition

12 pavenport, 197 P.3d at 689-692.

" A-26 to A-32

l‘f Davenport, 197 P.3d 686 at 689-692.

" PDCv. WEA, 156 Wn.2d at 569.

'8 Davenport v. Washington Education Association, __U.S. __, 127 S.Ct. 2372, 2377,
168 L.Ed.2d 71 (2007)



placed upon the union's extraordinary state entitlement to acquire and
spend other people's money.”!” Because it is the State that confers “the
power, in essence, to tax government employees” the union has no greater
right to nonmember funds than that which the legislature or the people by
Initiative give it.'8

Viewed in this context, the union’s power to “tax” nonmember
funds to pay for the union’s politics is circumscribed because it is the
nonmember’s First Amendment interests that may be harmed. It follows
that where the union fails to obtain the nonmember’s consent, as the WEA
did here, the unlawful act directly injures the individual agency fee payer
and indirectly the public’s interest in fair elections.

WEA contends Crisman v. Pierce Counlym contradicts Davenport.
WEA is misguided. First, Crisman did not implicate individual interests,
and certainly not individual interests remotely similar to the nonmembers’
First Amendment interests implicated by §760. In Crisman, the plaintiff
lost an election because his opponent allegedly used public facilities in his
campaign in violation of RCW 42.17. 130.2° The alleged unlawful conduct
involved the misuse of public facilities over which the plaintiff had no

authority and could not connect to an individualized harm. If any party

17127 S.Ct. at 2380 (emphasis in the original).

¥ 127 S.Ct. at 2379.

%115 Wn. App 16, 60 P.3d 652 (2002).

2 RCW 42.17.130 states: “No elective official nor any employee of his office nor any
person appointed to or employed by any public office or agency may use or authorize the
use of any of the facilities of a public office or agency, directly or indirectly, for the
purpose of assisting a campaign for election of any person to any office or for the
promotion of or opposition to any ballot proposition.



possessed an interest violated by the defendant, it was the governmental
agency whose facilities were misused for electioneering. The interests
harmed distinguish Crisman and Davenport.

This Court recognized another individual interest protected under
another provision of RCW 42.17, RCW 42.17.680(2), enacted by Initiative
134, the same ballot measure that enacted §760.! In Nelson, a newspaper
reporter sued her employer under §680(2) after she was transferred to a
non-journalistic position because of her political activism.”> The employer
argued on appeal that section §680(2) does not create an individual right to
be free from discrimination. This Court disagreed and “recognize[d the
plaintiff’s] statutory right to avoid workplace discrimination based on her
politics.””* Whether or not this Court recognized a private right of action
in Nelson, this Court clearly held that RCW 42.17 does protect
particularized individual interests while also protecting the public interest
in fair elections.”’ Unlike Crisman and similar to Nelson, individual

interests are harmed when §760 is violated.

2! Nelson v. McClatchy Newspapers, Inc. 131 Wn.2d 523, 936 P.2d 1123, cert. denied,
522 U.S. 866 (1997).

22 «(2) No employer or labor organization may discriminate against an officer or
employee in the terms or conditions of employment for (a) the failure to contribute to, (b)
the failure in any way to support or oppose, or () in any way supporting or opposing a
candidate, ballot proposition, political party, or political committee. At least annually, an
employee from whom wages or salary are withheld under subsection (3) of this section
shall be notified of the provisions of this subsection

% Nelson, 131 Wn.2d at 533

 Id. at 543

5 In Nelson, this Court observed that the plaintiff’s individual interest in being free of
workplace discrimination furthered the public interest in fair elections: “Taken as a
whole, the provision in question means that employers may not disproportionately
influence politics by forcing their employees to support their position or by attempting to
force political abstinence on politically active employees.” Nelson, 131 Wn.2d at 534.



Second, Crisman does not contradict Davenport because the
absence of legislative purpose to create a private right of action has no
bearing on whether a plaintiff may assert an independent common law
claim based on conduct that violates a statute. In Crisman, the Court of
Appeals concluded that an absence of voter intent precluded a private right
of action. However, voter intent is not required for an independent,
preexisting common law cause of action, such as restitution, to provide a
1remedy.26 As the majority in Davenport explains in its well-reasoned
decision, a claim for restitution may lie, even in the absence of a defined
property interest, where an initial transfer of funds may be lawful at the
time, but subject to a condition, the subsequent failure of which deprives
the funds of their initial lawful justification and makes their retention, and
the benefits thereof, unjustifiable. 27

Notably, this Court held that a common law action for restitution
based on the violation of a statute may be brought even where the
statutory scheme does not necessarily support a private right of action.”®
In Appleway, this Court held that because the plaintiff had brought an
independent claim of restitution, there was no need to address whether the
B & O statute (RCW 82.04.500) implies a private right of action.”’?
Appleway, severely undercuts the WEA’s argument that if a statute does

not support a private right of action, the plaintiff is barred from bringing

26 One difference between a private right of action under RCW 42.17 and common law
restitution is the difference in the statutes of limitations. Davenport, 197 P.3d at 704.
27

Id., at 699.
2 Nelson v. Appleway Chevrolet, Inc. 106 Wn.2d 173, 175 P.3d 847 (2007).
®Id, at173.



an independent common law claim for restitution. Crisman and Davenport
do not conflict. Review should be denied.

B. Davenport Does Not Conflict with Nelson v. Appleway.

The WEA also attempts to create a conflict where none exists
between this Court’s holding in Appleway and Davenport. The WEA
contends a claim of restitution may lie only where the plaintiff can show
the transfer of funds to the defendant was legally ineffective. Appleway
cannot be so narrowly construed, nor does the weight of authority support

% In dppleway, the crux of the plaintiff’s

such a narrow construction.
restitution claim was that the dealership illegally charged plaintiff B & O
tax that RCW 82.04.500 required the dealership to pay. The unlawful act
in Appleway was the transfer of the tax payment from plaintiff to the
dealership. The facts did not require this Court to address whether the
dealership could lawfully receive the funds but under circumstances that
subsequently made their retention unlawful. Thus, there was nothing in
this Court’s holding in Appleway to suggest the Court would reject the line
of cases which also apply restitution to circumstances in which, as here,

the initial transfer is (arguably) lawfully compelled at the beginning,

subject to a condition that subsequently fails, depriving the transfer of its

3% Davenport, 197 P.3d at 696-702. The Court of Appeals provides a careful and thorough
analysis of Washington and other state authorities supporting an unjust enrichment claim.
The WEA attempts to distinguish all of them on the ground that they did not deal with
estoppel. WEA Petition, pgs. 17-19. But in doing so WEA concedes these cases stand
for the proposition for which the Court of Appeals cites them: restitution is a common
law claim that applies either when a transfer of funds is unlawful or when a lawful
transfer is later nullified by the transferee’s failure to satisfy a material condition
subsequent. As discussed, infra, WEA cannot establish estoppel after it violated §760.



initially lawful justification, and making retention of its benefits
unjustifiable.’!

There is no conflict between Davenport and Appleway. Davenport
and Appleway both apply the claim of restitution to a violation of a statute
under circumstances in which a person is “unjustly enriched at the expense
232

of another.

C. The Davenport Decision Does Not Conflict with This
Court’s Opinion in PDCv. WEA

As WEA all but concedes, in PDC v. WEA this Court did
not reach the question of whether or not WEA used agency shop fees for
political purposes in violation of §760.* Thus, Davenport’s holding that
the WEA failed to meet a condition placed on that use cannot conflict with
PDC v. WEA. This Court did not reach the “use” issue because it
invalidated the statute on federal constitutional grounds. In fact, if an
inference is to be drawn from the Court’s opinion, it is that this Court
believed the statute did restrict the WEA’s use of its general treasury for
politics because this Court believed the affirmative authorization
requirement violated the WEA’s First Amendment rights.* In other
words, the Court would not have had to reach the constitutional question if

it concluded §760 permitted the union unfettered use of its general

31 1d., at 699, 701; Restatement (Third )of Restitution §18 at 281-82 (Tentative Draft No.
D).

32 Restatement (Third) of Restitution §1.

33 WEA claims this Court concluded it properly collected and held on to agency fees, but
the issue of proper “use” remained in contention. WEA’s Petition, p. 10.

3 PDCv. WEA, 156 Wn.2d at 569 (“ Section 760 then encumbers the use of such funds
by prohibiting their expenditure for [the WEA’s] political speech.”)

-10-



treasury for political purposes. Thus, Davenport’s ruling that Teachers
may pursue a cause of action for restitution cannot conflict with a holding
this Court did not make.

Even if this Court should find a conflict and accept review of the
issue of WEA’s use of agency shop fees, WEA cannot prevail. An appeal
from a CR 12 motion requires the appellate court to take all facts alleged
in the complaint, as well as hypothetical facts consistent therewith, in the
light most favorable to the nonmoving party.3 > It is abundantly clear from
the trial court’s Findings of Fact in the PDC v. WEA case, and WEA’s
own admission to multiple violations of §760, that sufficient facts exist to
support the allegation in the complaint that WEA unlawfully used agency
shop fees.>® Moreover, the WEA did not seek interlocutory review of the
“use” issue.”’

WEA attempts to overcome its impossible fact burden by relying
on evidence it presented to the trial court in PDC v. WEA. WEA
summarizes the alleged trial testimony of two unidentified accounting
“experts,” without citation, for the proposition its surplus in any given
year exceeds agency shop fees so it could not have used such fees for
politics. The trial court in PDC v. WEA rejected this testimony.”® In

effect, WEA urges this Court to accept review and reverse the trial court’s

CR 12 rulings based on evidence it presented in another trial that it lost.

35 Davenport, 197 P.3d at 692.
36 A-33 to A-40; A-9 to A-10
37 A-41 to A-48

3% A-36

-11-



Finally, WEA implies some sort of conflict between Davenport
and PDC v. WEA based on the “uncertainty” over the constitutionality of
§760. WEA seems to suggest that even if it violated the law, because the
constitutionality of that law was uncertain, it was entitled to keep
Teachers’ money. Of course it offers no legal support for such an absurd
contention other than to cite to Judge Hunt’s dissent in WEA v. PDC, in
which she would have upheld the trial court’s injunction requiring the
union to return to nonmembers the political portion.39

There is no conflict between the decision of the court below and
this Court’s opinion in PDCv. WEA.

D. The Davenport Decision Does Not Conflict With This

Court’s Opinion in Nugget Properties v. County of
Kittitas.

Next WEA attempts to fabricate a conflict between Davenport and
a 1967 mineral rights case, Nugget Properties v. County of Kittitas,"°
claiming that the failure to object under Hudson equitably estopped
Teachers from bringing a restitution claim. This argument is without
merit.

Equitable estoppel is not favored, and the party asserting estoppel
must prove each element by clear, cogent, and convincing evidence.”! The
elements to be proved are: first, an admission, statement, or act

inconsistent with a claim afterwards asserted; second, action by another in

39117 Wn. App. 625, 646, 71 P.3d 244 (2003).
4071 Wn.2d 760, 431 P.2d 580 (1967).
' Robinson v. City of Seattle, 119 Wn.2d 34, 82, 830 P.2d 318 (1992)

-12-



reasonable reliance on that act, statement, or admission; and third, injury
to the party who relied if the court allows the first party to contradict or
repudiate the prior act, statement, or admission.” WEA contends that by
Teachers failing to object under Hudson, WEA was justified in concluding
it did not have to comply with §760 and could retain and spend agency
fees on politics.

WEA’s estoppel defense twists and confuses the separate rights
secured for the benefit of nonmembers by §760 and by the First
Amendment. Under the former, nonmembers must first “opt in” before the
WEA may use their wages for certain political expenditures, while under
the latter nonmembers must “opt out” to prevent the WEA from using
their wages for an array of nonchargeable expenses.43

Nonmembers declining to object, or to “opt out,” under Hudson
cannot relieve WEA of its obligation to comply with the law. Hudson
provides the floor of protections for agency fee payers, while §760
requires more from the union to safeguard agency fee payelrs.44 On its
face, §760 places the onus on WEA to obtain the consent of nonmembers,
or to “opt in.” The statute’s very purpose is to protect nonmembers who
for whatever reason decline to act, or fail to “opt out,” under Hudson.
“Mere silence does not constitute a waiver unless there is an obligation to

speak.”™  And §760’s affirmative authorization requirement means
P

*2 Id.; Board of Regents of Univ. of Wash. v. Seattle, 108 Wn.2d 545, 551,741 P.2d 11
(1987).

“ PDCv. WEA, 156 Wn.2d at 569.

“ Davenport v. WEA, 127 S.Ct. at 2379.

“ Voelker v. Joseph, 62 Wn.2d 429, 435, 383 P.2d 301(1963).

-13 -



agency fee payers have no such obligation. It follows that Teachers could
not as a matter of law fail to act (object) in a way that is inconsistent with
their claim that WEA failed to fulfill its affirmative, statutory obligation to
obtain Teachers’ authorization.

WEA relies primarily on Nugget Properties v. County Kittitas, in
which the plaintiff mining company belatedly asserting its rights to
property sat on those rights for 35 years in full knowledge that the other
parties were building homes on the property. Nugget is not remotely
analogous to the instant case.

Voelker is instructive.®® In Voelker, this Court said that
acquiescence in the form of a failure to bring suit does not act as a waiver
of a right as long as the suit is commenced within the statute of
limitations. “Mere delay, lapse of time, and acquiescence standing alone
do not bar a claim short of the statute of limitations.*’

Moreover, estoppel is not favored when it is raised in derogation of
a statutory right, e.g. the right not to have one’s wages used for another’s
politics unless one “opts in.”*® In Castle Homes and Development, Inc. v.
The City of Brier, the city attempted to invoke estoppel against the
developer since the developer had agreed to the improperly calculated
traffic mitigation fees. The court said that the city couldn’t raise estoppel

as a defense since it was in violation of the statute that governed how to

46
Id.
1 White Pass Co. v. St. John, 71 Wn.2d 156, 163, 427 P.2d 398 (1967).

® Voelker, 62 Wn.2d at 436.

-14 -



properly calculate the fees.* Similarly, the WEA cannot claim estoppel
after it violated §760.

On appeal of a CR 12 ruling, WEA cannot possibly carry its
burden of establishing estoppel. “In order to raise an estoppel by
acquiescence the party estopped must have been aware of his own rights
and have perceived that the other party was acting on a mistaken notion of
his rights.””® WEA has no evidence, much less uncontroverted evidence,
to establish that Teachers received the Hudson notices, op‘ened them, read
and sufficiently understood fheir contents, were made aware the WEA
would use their agency shop fees for political purposes, knew WEA was
acting on the mistaken belief it could use Teachers’ fees for political
purposes, and knew WEA had to obtain their affirmative authorizations.
In fact, WEA claims it did not use agency fees for politics because it had a
sufficient surplus to cover its political expenditures.”’ Accordingly, WEA
cannot possibly prove Teachers knew what the WEA itself contends
cannot possibly be true.

The WEA’s petition for review should be denied as there is no
conflict between Davenport and Crisman, PDC v. WEA or Nugget.

E. WEA Has Failed to Show A Substantial Public Interest.

Having failed to show a conflict between Davenport and a decision

of this Court or of the Court of Appeals, WEA must demonstrate its

“ 76 Wn.App. 95, 109, 882 P.2d 1172 (1994)
%% De Boe v. Prentice Packing and Storage, 172 Wn. 514, 521, 20 P.2d 1107 (1933).

! WEA Petition, pgs. 10-11

-15-



petition involves an issue of substantial public interest. It does not.
Indeed, other than a heading claiming a substantial public interest, WEA’s
petition is devoid of argument and citation to any supporting authority.
Perhaps WEA’s “argument” is a single sentence dropped in a footnote in
which it suggests Davenport’s restitution claim for WEA’s unauthorized
use of agency fee payers’ wages “may have opened the floodgates of

552

potential litigation seeking damages.””” It easy to see why WEA relegated
this “argument” to a footnote.

In the approximately thirty-five years of the Public Disclosure Act,
there are three reported cases in which an individual plaintiff or plaintiffs
sought some form of damages: Nelson, Crisman and Davenport. Nelson
was decided in 1997 and though this Court held plaintiff had a “statutory
right” under RCW 42.17, a floodgate of claims for damages  did not
materialize in the intervening twelve years. Perhaps this is because the
only two sections in RCW 42.17 that provide some level of protection to
individuals are §680 (Nelson) and §760 (Davenport). If the number of
claimants should double in the next twelve years, to six, the narrow
parameters of Crisman, affirmed by Davenport, will guide future courts in
analyzing novel claims for damages under RCW 42.17.

The issues raised in the WEA’s petition fall far short of implicating

the public interest and certainly not a substantial interest. The public

interest was ostensibly served when WEA paid penalties to the State to

52 WEA Petition, p. 8, f. 16.
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settle the PDC enforcement action. The Legislature amended §760 to
exempt unions whose revenues from member dues exceed their political
expenditures, which probably exempts all unions.”® Thus, this is likely the
last of any such challenge under §760. There is no substantial public

interest at stake. WEA’s petition for review should be rejected.

VI. IF REVIEW IS ACCEPTED, THIS COURT SHOULD
CONSIDER OTHER CLAIMS DISMISSED BY THE
COURT OF APPEALS

If this Court accepts review of Davenport, Teachers respectfully
request it accept review of the Court of Appeal’s dismissal of their private

right of action and conversion claims.

A. The Trial Court Properly Ruled that Teachers Have an
Implied Right of Action Under Bennett.

RCW 42.17.760 creates an implied private right of action to
protect the interests of individual fee payers who suffer a direct monetary
loss in light of the tripart test of Bennett. > Teachers are within a group of
people the statute was designed to protect.

The statute explicitly identifies the class of individuals and their
interests that it seeks to protect: “an individual who [is] not a member” of

the union who pays “agency shop fees.” It empowers the nonmember, not

33 Current RCW 42.17.760 contains the following subsection: (2) A labor organization
does not use agency shop fees when it uses its general treasury funds to make such
contributions or expenditures if it has sufficient revenues from sources other than agency
shop fees in its general treasury to fund such contributions or expenditures.

%Bennett v. Hardy, 113 Wn.2d 912, 920-21 (1990). (“[Flirst, whether the plaintiff is
within the class for whose “especial” benefit the statute was enacted; second, whether
legislative intent, explicitly or implicitly, supports creating or denying a remedy; and
third, whether implying a remedy is consistent with the underlying purpose of the
legislation.”)
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the public, with the right to withhold affirmative authorization. On its
face, the statute seeks to provide protections greater than those secured by
the First Amendment. *°

In Davenport, the Court of Appeals misconstrued the Benneit test
and reasoned that if a statute protects the public interest it cannot be
interpreted to protect an individual interest. However, the inquiry is
whether from a plain reading of §760 it appears the voters created a class
in which the Teachers are included. Undeniably, the statute protects
agency fee payers’ First Amendment interests not to fund the union’s
political agenda by requiring the union to obtain their affirmative consent.

In Nelson, this Court determined the public interest in fair
campaigns was served by protecting the plaintiff against discrimination.”®
That a statute benefits the public at large is no impediment to a court
finding an implied right of action.

When a statute protects a specific class of individuals, it implicitly
grants a remedy to those individuals. “[TThe Legislature would not enact a
statute granting rights to an identifiable class without enabling members of
that class to enforce those rights.”57
It is not necessary that the legislature (or the voters) explicitly

intend to create the right, the test requires only that at a minimum it

implicitly support such a right and that right may be implied merely from

% Davenport, 127 S.Ct at 2379. The WEA’s own legal counsel agrees “RCW 42.17.760
makes all agency fee payers into objectors for the limited purposes specified therein.”
CP 179 of PDC'v. WEA.

5 Nelson, 131 Wn.2d at 534.

57 Bennett, 113 Wn.2d at 921.
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the creation of the identifiable class.”® Moreover, both the policy, RCW
42.17.620, and the findings, RCW 42.17.610, explicitly refer to increasing
the power of “individuals” in the political process.

The Davenport court’s reliance on its earlier decision in Crisman is
misplaced. In Crisman, Division Two correctly refused to imply a private
right of action from RCW 42.17.130, enacted by Initiative 276. In
Crisman, the defeated candidate contended §130 created a private tort
action. No where in §130 is a defeated candidate “within the class for
whose ‘especial” benefit the statute was enacted.”

Teachers’ legal counsel served the requisite notice on the Attorney
General and County Prosecutors.” They brought this suit after the AG
filed its enforcement action and stated that she would not try to recover
their agency fees. Teachers have complied with the enforcement
mechanism of RCW 42.17 and are in a special class of persons that §760,

on its face, was intended to protect.

B. The Trial Court Properly Ruled That Teachers’
Conversion Claim Is Valid.

As the United State Supreme Court clarified in this case, the WEA
has no right to collect, retain or use agency fee payers’ money unless
conferred by statute.’) ' WEA may have the statutory right to collect
agency shop fees but in light of Hudson or §760, it does not have an

unfettered statutory right to retain and use them. Under Hudson, WEA

*Id.
9 RCW 42.17.400(4).
% Davenport, 127 S.Ct. at 2379.
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must return the amount it spends on nonchargeable activities to objecting
nonmembers and under §760 return the political portion to those from
whom it has failed to obtain their authorization. “One who is authorized to
make particular use of a chattel, and uses it in a manner exceeding the
authorization, is subject to liability for conversion to another whose right
to control the use of the chattel is thereby seriously violated.”®' Teachers
respectfully request that should this Court accept review, it reverse the
Court of Appeals and permit Teachers’ conversion claim to go forward to

trial.

VII. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Teachers respectfully request that this
Court deny WEA’s petition for review. Alternatively, if this Court accepts
review, Teachers request that it accept review of Davenport’s dismissal of
their private right of action and conversion claims and affirm the trial

court’s denial of WEA’s CR 12 motion to dismiss.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 11th day of February, 2009.
ELLIS, LI & McKINSTRY PLLC :
By: ,<‘ %&0@
STEVEN T. O’BAN, WSBA #17265
Attorneys for Respondents

8! Restatement (Second) of Torts, §228 (1963).
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

WASHINGTON EDUCATION
ASSOCIATION,

NO. 82615-3
Petitioner,
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Vs.

GARY DAVENPORT, MARTHA
LOFGREN, WALT PIERSON,
SUSANNAH SIMPSON, and TRACY
WOLCOT,

Respondents.

I hereby certify that I served a true and correct copy of the
ANSWER TO WEA’S PETITION TO REVIEW, APPENDIX and

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE on the following:

VIA MESSENGER: VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL:
Judith A. Lonnquist Harriet K. Strasberg

Law Offices of Judith A. Lonnquist 3136 Maringo Road SE

1218 Third Avenue, Suite 1500 Olympia, Washington 98501

Seattle, WA 98101

Dated this 11™ day of February, 2009.

Katherine Adamczyk

Legal Assistant to Steven T. O’Ban
Ellis, Li & McKinstry PLLC

Two Union Square

601 Union Street, Suite 4900
Seattle, WA 98101

(206) 682-0565/phone
(206) 625-1052/fax

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE - 1
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Two Union Square

Efl " LI & MCKINSTR

601 Union Street, Suite 4900

Seattle, WA 98101-3906

206-682-0565
FAX: 206-625-1052

elm@elmlaw.com :

Ronald E. McKinstry
Chi-Duah Li

Michael R. McKinstry

Jan P. Olson

Danriel J . Ichinaga

Steven T. O'Ban

Keith A. Kemper

Andrew J. Toles

Tr;)y S. Anderson

" Ksle D. Neteerfield
niel L. Tavlor

) » . wen K. Waggoner

Lana M. Floyd
A. Chad Allred

William H. Ellis
(1932-1994)

A TTORNETYS AT A
August 11, 2000
Certified Mail, Return Receipt
Christine Gregoire '
Attorney General
1125 Washington Street, S.E. -

P.O. Box 40100
Olympia, WA 98504-0100

Washmgton State County Prosecutors (See attached list.)

Re:  Notice of Violation of Public Disclosure Act (RCW 42.17) by WA
- School Districts and WEA

Dear Ms. Gregoire and County Prosecutors:

Our office represents the Evergreen Freedom Foundation (EFF) and public school
employees On their behalf, we hereby notify you that there is reason to believe that all
public school employers have been, are and will continue to violate the Public
Disclosure Act, RCW 42.17, and in particular RCW 42.17.680 and .760, by withholding
dues and fees from their employees' wages that are used by the Washington Education

- Association (WEA) and National Education Association (NEA) for contributions to

political campaugns There is also reason to believe the WEA is violating RCW
42.17.760 by using the agency fees for contributions and expenditures without the
affirmative authorization of non-members.

. Interpreting RCW 42.1 7.680(3), the Washington Supreme court recently ruled that

“[Wlhen an employer has notice that the funds deducted [from employee wages] are
for the use of a political committee or candidate, the employer may not then make

that deduction without specific annual authorization.” State of Washington ex rel,
Evergreen Freedom Foundation, et al., v. Washington Education Association, et al. 140 -

Wn.2d 615; 999 P.2d 602 (2000).

In a concurring opinion, Justice Alexander wrote that when a district has been informed
that “withheld money is being used for the benefit of political candidates or
committees,” then “the district has actual notice, or that, at the very least, it must

- assume a burden to make further inquiries.” Employers have an affirmative duty to

protect employees from the unauthorized use of their (employees) wages or salaries for
political contributions. We concur with Justice Alexander’s opinion that to conclude
otherwise, “would be rendering the statute, which was passed by the people, a nullity,
and would be placing too great a premium on the district’s right to tur a blind eye to

*23782 10748.05
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August 11, 2000
Page 2

information it receives from an einployee who claims he or she is affected by the’
‘deduction.” ~

Similarly, Justice Madsen, in a separate opinion concurring in the result but dlssentlng
to the majority's affirmation of the employer's duty, wrote:

The majority says that where the employer has notice that the deducted funds
are for the use of a pohtlcal committee or candidate, the employer must have the
employee s written annual consent.

" In a sepatate opinion, Justice Sanders states the obvious- that WEA has, is and will
continue to use members’ dues for political purposes:

Now, if not then, (1996 election cycle) it is patently obvious to anyone of
educable age that the WEA will continue to use dues money for political
purposes in the future just as it-has in the past. Therefore future unauthorized
deductions from employee salaries for political use cannot be justified under the
pretense that the employer did not know what was going on, at least short of
some overt change in WEA policy.

Enclosed herewith are documents delivered by our client to each and every public
school employer in the state (see attached list of employers) by first class and certified
mail. The documents constitute actual notice to public school employers that the WEA
is using member dues and the fees of most non-objecting agency fee payers for political

- contributions:

Letter dated June 27, 2000 sent to Public School Employers.

Attachment A: Action Newsletter articles, WEA President Lee Ann Prielipp
speech to the May 2000 address to the Representative
Assembly and other WEA documents regarding political
expenditures.

Attachment B: Campaign Finance Reports filed with the Public Disclosure
Commission (PDC) for Initiatives 708 and 732 Citizens
for Quality Educators.

Attachment C: Campaign F inance Reports filed with the PDC for Initiative 728
K-12 2000.

Attachment D:L3C Reports filed by the WEA as a lobbyist employer with the
PDC.
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Attachment E: L3 reports filed by WEA (lobbyist employer summary).

Attachment F: Documents éhowing agency fees used for political cdntributions
unless non-members object (in violation of RCW
42.17.760). :

These documents establish that the WEA is using general dues and the fees of non-
members to make contributions to ballot-issue political committees and WEA-PAC, a
political committee which contributes most of it funds to candidatss. In addition to the
political contributions discussed in the attached letter to the school districts, the WEA
has contributed more than $125,000 to political committees using dues and fees.

In the case of non-members, only those non-members paying agency fees who
affirmatively object, obtain a refiind from WEA. RCW 42.17.760 requires the
affirmative authorization of non-members before their agency fees may be used for
contributions or expenditures. ’

Please contact us immediately if it would assist you to meet with us to discuss this
information.

There is no indication that public school employers have taken any steps toward
obtaining the written authorizations required by RCW 42.1 7.680(3) and .760.
Accordingly, with each payroll, public school employers are violating RCW
42.17.680(3) and assisting the WEA in the violation of .760. -

We request that one or more of you immediately commence an action in the courts to
address these apparent violations and protect the paychecks of public school employees.
If'you do not do so, our clients will seek appropriate legal and equitable relief pursuant
to RCW 42.17.

Very trilly yours,

ELLIS, LI & McKINSTRY PLLC

Nz Db s

Enclosures

cc: Clients

Co*3782 A-3



Mr. Gary Brueher

Adams County Prosecuting Attorey
21 W. Broadway

Ritzville, WA 99169

Mr. Andrew Miller

Benton County Prosecuting Attorney
7320 W. Quinault Ave

" Kennewick, WA 99336

Mr. Christopher Shea

Clallam County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 863

Port Angeles, WA 98362-0149

Mr. Art Curtis

Clark County Prosecuting Attorney
1200 Franklin Street

Vancouver, WA 98660

Mr. James Stonier

Cowlitz County Prosecuting Attorney
‘312 SW 1% Ave :

- Kelso, WA 98626

Mr. Ray Lutes

- Asotin County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 220

Asotin, WA 99402

Mr. Gary Riesen

Chelan County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 2596

Wenatchee, WA 98801

Mr. Conrad Hoskins

Columbia County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 270

Dayton, WA 99328-0270

Mr. Steve M. Lowe
Franklin County Prosecuting. Attorney
1016 N. 4" Ave

Pasco, WA 98301
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Ms. Juelie Dalzell

Jefferson County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 98368

Port Townsend, WA 98368

Mr. John R. Henry

Garfield County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 820.

Pomeroy, WA 99347

Mr. John Knodell

Grant County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 37

~ Ephrata, WA 98823

Mr. Steven M. Clem

Douglas County Prosecuting Attorney
POBoxM :
Waterville, WA 98858

Mr. Stephen Graham
- Ferry County Prosecuting Attorney
* 350 E. Delaware, #11 ‘
Republic, WA 99166

Mr. H. Steward Menefee

Grays Harbor County Prosecutmg Attorney
PO Box 550

Montesano, WA 98563

Mr. Gregory M. Banks

Island County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 5000

Coupeville, WA 98239-5000

Mr. Norm Maleng

King County Prosecuting Attorney
516 3" Ave.

- Seattle, WA 98104

Mr. Russ Hauge

- Kitsap County Prosecuting Attomey
614 Division Street

Port Orchard, WA 98366
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Mr. Greg Zempel

Kittitas County Prosecuting Attorney
205 W. 5™ Ave, Room 213
Ellensburg, WA 98926

Mr. Jim Hagarty

Kickitat County Prosecuting Attorney
205 S. Columbus, Room 106
Goldendale, WA 98620

Mr. Jeremy Randolph

Lewis County Prosecuting Attorney
360 NW North Street, MS: PRO01
Chehalis, WA 98532-1900

" Mt. Ronald Shepherd

Lincoln County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 874

Davenport, WA 99122

Mr. Gary P. Burleson

Mason County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 639 :
Shelton, WA 98584

Mr. Rick Weber

Okanogan County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 1130

Okanogan, WA 98840

Mr. Mike Smith

Pacific County Prosecuting Attortey
PO Box 45

South Bend, WA 98586

Mr. Thomas A. Metzger

Pend Oreille County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 5070 '

Newport, WA 99156-5070

Mr. John Ladenburg
Pierce County Prosecuting A/xttomey
930 Tacoma Ave. S.
Tacoma, WA 98042
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Mr Randall K. Gaylord

San Juan County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 760
Friday Harbor, WA 98250

Mr. Tom Verge
Skagit County Prosecuting Attorney

_ Courthouse Annex

605 S. 3¢
Mt. Vernon, WA 98273

Mr. Bradley W. Andersen _
Skamania County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 790

Stevenson, WA 98648-0790

Mr. James H. Krider

Snohomish County Prosecuting Attorney
3000 Rockefeller Ave, MS 504

Everett, WA 98201

Mr. Steve Tucker

Spokane County Prosecuting Attorney
W 1116 Broadway

Spokane, WA 99260

Mr. John G. Wetle

Stevens County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 390

Colville, WA 99114

Mr. Edward G. Holm -
Thurston County Prosecuting Attomey
2000 Lakeridge Drive SW

Olympia, WA 98502

Mr. Fred A. Johnson

Wahkiakum County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 397

Cathlamet, WA 98612

Mr. James L. Nagle
Walla Walla County Prosecuting Attomey

- 5 W Alder Ste 407

Walla Walla, WA 99362

¥*23783
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Mr. David S. McEachran

Whatcom County Prosecuting Attorney
311 Grand Avenue

Bellingham, WA 98225

Mr. James H. Kaufman

Whitman County Prosecuting Attorney
PO Box 30 ‘ :
Colfax, WA 99111

Mr. Jeffrey C. Sullivan

Yakima County Prosecuting Attormey
128 N. 2™ Street

Yakima, WA 98901
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COMMISSION

STATE OF WASHINGTON
IN THE MATTER OF THE ) CASENO 01-002
ENFORCEMENT ACTION AGAINST ) '
. , ) STIPULATION OF FACTS,
~ Washington Education Association ) VIOLATIONS AND
) '~ RECOMMENDATIONS
Respondent. )
. )

The Washington Education Association (Rcspoﬁdcnt) and Public Disclosure Commission

Enforcement Staff (Staff) agree to the following: _
1. The Respondent is a labor organization. -
2. The Respondent deposited into its general fund agency fec money from 4,194
individuals. )
The Respondent’s general fund méncy was used to make contributions and
expenditures to influence an election and to operate a political committee.
The Rcspondcﬁt did not have affirmative authorization from agency fee payers to use

their money for these purposes.
The Respondent contends that the number of 4,194 is over-inclusive in that it includes

persons who were members of WEA and did not pay agency fees.

Staff contends that when Respondent submitted documents in response to a subpoena,
a redacted list of 4,407 agency fee payers was pms;ntcd. Names of the agency fee
payers were redacted and replaced with a unique iécntiﬁcation number for each agency

fee payer. Of these 4,407 individuals, 213 cither filed objections or challenges to their

funds being used for ‘non-chargeable’ expenditures and received a refund of the
partion of their fees being used for non-chargeable purposes. The funds from the

remaining 4,194 individuals were then transferred from the agency fee escrow account
to WEA's general operating fund.

A-9
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Washington Education Assn.
Stipulation of Facts, Violations and Penalty
Page 2
7. Staff were unable to determine the amount of agency fees used to make the
contributions and expenditures referred to in paragraph 3 because WEA’s final

cevenue figures for FY 2000 (September L, 1999 through August 31,2000) are not yet

available. -

Violation

 Respondent and Staff agree that Respondent committed multiple violations of RCW 42.17.760.

Recommendation

Staff recommends that this matter be referred to the Office of the Attorney General for ﬁ;rtﬁcr

review pursuant to RCW 42.17.395(3). Respondent does not oppose the recommendation by

staff.

Respectfully submitted this @’"Q day of September, 2000.

Harriet Strasberg, Counsel
WEA

Vicki Rippie, Exectitfve Director
PDC
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Superior Court of the State of Washmgton

* Daniel . Berschauer, Judge
Department No, 1

Faula Casey, [udge
Depdrtment No, 2 .
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David T. Wendel, AAG
P.0. Box 40126

Olympia, WA 98504-0126

Richard A. Heath
Attorney at Law

P.O. Box 723 _
Pullman, WA 99163

Stephen T. 'Reinmuth, AAG
P.O. Box 40100
Olympia, WA  98504-0100

Judith A. Lonnquist

" Attorney at Law

1218 3™ Ave. #1500
Seattle, WA 98101

Hamriet K. Strasberg
Attorney at Law

3136 Maringoe SE
Olympia, WA 98501

Michael James Gawley
Attorney at Law

Seattle, WA 98109
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Attorney at Law
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Federal Way, WA 98003

For Thurston County l

BUILDING NO. 2. COURTHOUSE Caralyn Reed

July 31, 2001 i

I
Chris Wickham
Court Cammmmner
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Scott'C. Neilson |
Court Cnmmvmanzr
708-3201
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Administralor - |
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Re:
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Thurston County Cause
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LETTER OPINION [PDC vs WEA] July 31, 200/
Page 2 ’ '

Dear Counsci:

On May 14-18th, this court presided over a trial in the above-entitled case and took the
matter under advisement following closing afgumenrs by the parties. Now, having considered
‘the testimony presénted at trial, the briefs and arguments of the pairtics and the applicable statutes
and case authority, this court rules by Way of this letter opinion. | 5

" BACKGROUND

Thie iﬂal in this matter focused upon facts surrounding the col'lcct,ibn.of feeslby the
Washington Education Associatioh [WEA] from pon-union members called “fee Hpay.e'rs” for a five
year period [1995/1996 through 1999/2000]. These “fee payers” pay fees equal to the Union

‘Dues paid by union members ! unless they raise an objection. Those who object receive a reﬁind .
based upon a formula that a_ccounts for the ratio of “chargcaﬁle”'to “nonchargeable™ expenses_?
The Public Disclesure 'Commissioﬁ [PDC], plaintiff in this ‘niatter,A claimed that portions of these
fees were used for ‘political purposes” in violation of RCW 42.17.760 3, that civil penalties 4 and
costs should be imposed by this court, and that this dourt should consider whether any.violations _

~ that might be found were“‘iqtentional."_ which would allow the court to. “treble” any penalties and - [

costs.’

' These fees do not include the amount union members pay as “Community Outreach Project”
- [COP] assesaments. COP funds were nat a part of this lawsuit.

? This process is called the Hudson process, see Chicago Teachers U}L.ioh v. Hudson, 475 1.S.
292, 106 S.Ct. 2641 (1988) and distinguishes expenses that are “chargeable” to collective bargaining,
purposes from those which are not. : :

 RCW 42.17.760 Agency shop fees as contributions. A labor organization may not use
agency shop fees paid by an individual who is not a member of the organization to make cantributions
or expenditures to influence an election or to operate a political committee, unless affirmatively
authorized by the individual. :

*RCW 42.17.390 (3) | o

S RCW 42.17.400(5) o ' ' . i

Superior Court of Washisgton
Thurstan County, Degrevment Seven

A-12 ' ' :
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LETTER OPINION [PDC vs WEA] July 31, 2001
Page 3 ’ .

The parties had previously agreed that the WEA had cornmitted multiple violations of
RCW 42. 17.760.¢ The agreement itself did not, however, specify what time period it covered.
This court ruled, ou March 23rd, 2001, at a pre-trial hearing, that .the agreement time period
would be the 1999-2000 school year and that alleged violations for the previous four years would
be considered at trial. This court also ruled on summary judgment that RCW 42.17.760 1s
constitutional and requires an affirmative authorization from agency fee payers [as opposed to a
passive failure to object] before the WEA may callect or use such fees for “political purposes”.”

‘ |

ISSUES B » [l
X [

{

‘The court will rule on the following issues as a result of the evidence produced at trial and
the positions of the parties: | ' ' ,
1. Did the WEA use agency fees in fiscal [school] years 1995-96, 1996-97, 1997-98, and
1998-1999 for purposes forbidden in RCW 42.17.7607 ¢ |
2. What is fhe appropriate amount of civil penalty to be imposed according to RCW
42.17.390(3)? .

3. Were WEA's violations “intentional” and if so should penalties and costs be increased

up to a treble amount as punitive damages under RCW 42.17.400(5)?
4. What other relief, if any should this court impose?

FINDINGS

. THE WEA HAS USED AGENCY FEES IN VIOLATION OF RCW 46.17.760
~ The evidence produced at trial has convinced this court that the WEA did, in fact, use

portions of the agency shop fees they received for “political purposes” that is, “ .. to make

¢ Trial Bxhibit 1, dated September 285, 2000,

"This court ruled orally on May 4, 2001 and the written order was entered May 15, 2001.

*Violations for 1999-2000 have been admitted by the WEA.

Super-ior Cburt of Washington
County. Deparimemt Saven

A-13
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LETTER OPINION [PDC vs WEA] July 31, 2001
Page 4 .

conuributions or expenditures to influence an election or to operate a politic_él committee, . . ." as
prohibited by RCW 42.17.760. While this court understands the position of the WEA to the effect
that they had sufficient reserves each year to more than offset the fee payor amounts in question,

and that amounts involved are quite small percentage wise [both the amounts received from agency
fee payers and amounts expended for political purposes], this court dmagrees with that logic. Any
distinction between “collecting” an agency fee {on the revenue s1dc] and “expending” monies for
a particular purpose [on the expense side) are forever obscured when the funds collected are
“commingled” into the general fupd.

1t is clear to this court that the WEA position was that agency fees were placed into the

_general fund and were spent each year as the WEA determined appropriate.” Moreover, the WEA
- hias further argued that even if the agency fees could have been separated, they would come back

into the general fund at the end of the year as “surplus™ funds. This reasoningv is erroneous. This
court could cite numerous examples of the unfairness of such a position, but in thc interest of time

and space will note only two:

First, the logical extension of such reasoning is that the WEA would, as a result of such

fees, have more money to spend than if they bad not collected them. If those fupds could be
construed to be spent only for non-political purboses, the WEA would still, obviously, have more
monies to spend from other funds for political purpeses. This is a clear-cut use of the total fimds
available for the given purposes in propottion to the source of the funds. While the percentage
might be small, the agency fees are nevertheless used as a part of the over-all total expenditures;
some of which were for prohibited purposes. o

‘Second, if agency fee amounts are simply held, and not spcﬁt [part of the unexpended funds

* which existed each year] by the end of the fiscal year, WEA’s position that they then lose their

chatacter and are simple a part of the surplus that can be carried over, would obviously prompt
a practice of just-waiting a year and spending the money without restrictions. This flies in the face
of the underlying problem that this court has previously identified - that of collecting fees from

*That is, unless a agency fee-payer efﬁrmatwely objected to the use of his or her funds for
purposes other than collective ba.rgammg It that case a portion of the fees would be returned to the fee-
payer under the Hudson process.

Superar Court of Washington
Thurston County, Depariment Seven
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agency fee payers without first gaining their affirmative authorization to do so. There would be
no tncentive to do so if the court were onty to consider whart was spent in the year it wés collected.
In short, the WEA violates RCW 42.17.760 when it collects agenéy fees and then spends
them for prohibited purposes in ratio to the total agency fées and dues collecred' withour .
 affirmative aurhorizafz'on. Whilé the amount spent for “political purposes” will be a component ‘
of the formula for assessing what portion of the agency fees are to be credited or returned to the
agency fee payers, that amount need not be quantified fof this court to rule as its initial finding that
such fees are, indeed, being spent in violation of the statute. The issue of how the amount of
© political expenditures can be factored into a determination of the correct proportional adjustment

1o agency fees is best left to the “Other Court Remedies” discussion below.

II. THIS COURT ASSESSES A CIVIL PENALTY OF $200,000 AGAINST THE WEA.

- Having found that the WEA violated the law as set forth in RCW 42.17.760 by using
agéncy fees for political purposes without affirmative authorization as set forth above, the court
must next address appropriate civil penalties, if any, under RCW 42.17.390(3).' A fine of up to
$10,000 for each violation of the stamte ﬁreSents a broad number of options to this court. This
court holds, first of all, that a civil penalty is approj:riate in the present case aside from »anj
amount of restitution or.refund owed. While the WEA, during the 5 year period at issue, has
collected and has had the béneﬁt of rﬁonies it was not entitled to under the statute, this court is not
addrcésing what, if any monies or damages any individual or group of fee payers would be entitled
to." Instead, this court notes that a penalty amount is appropriate to preserve the‘ integrity of our
system and»prbmote public conﬁdencq: those violating statutes will be held to answer.

¥ Again, COP assessments or dues are not included.

" (8) Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter may be subject to a civil
penalty of not more than ten thousand dollars for-each such violation, :

“The court notes that this action was filed by the Office of the Attorney General of the State of
Washington under RCW 42.17.400 (1) and is on behalf of the State of Washington as distinguished from
individual agency fee payers. No fee payer sought to intervene in this matter although several
individuals did ask for permission to submit amicus pleadings, which this court denjed.

Superior Court of Washington
Thyrkion County, Department Sevan
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:' This court accepts, in principle, the arguments submitted by the Plaintiff herein. First of
all, there cannot be an absolute determination of the amounts involved™ either those lost 1o fee
payers or gained by the WEA [costs avoided by not complying with the affirmative authorization
requirement]. Secondly, the total number or even the identity of individuals involved cannot be
dt_ztermincd since there were coh_stant changes over the five-year period:; nevertheless a penalry
céuld be asséssed as to each iﬁdividual found to have been an agency fee payer if .the court 'desjred.
Plaintiff proposed that the court consider a total of 8,000 individuals, {although the actual ﬁgufe
appears to be almost double that "], and that 2 penalty of $25 be assessed for each of those
individualé for a total of $200,000. This court acéepfs that proposal as being fair to both sides

under the present facts.'”

TI. THIS COURT FINDS AN INTENTIONAL VIOLATION BY THE WEA IN FAILING
TO FOLLOW THE LAW AND DOUBLES THE AMOUNT OF DAMAGES AS A
PUNITIVE SANCTION. THE COURT CHOOSES NOT TO DOUBLE COSTS.

This issue has been the most difficult trial issue for this court. I have listened carefully to -
the testimony of the witnesses‘:md concede that there was ambivalence and a lack of official
 direction as to the correct interpretation of the “affirmative authorization” language by leaders for
both the WEA and the PDC. On the other hand, it is clear to this court that much of that
indecision on the part of the WEA was a desire to not have to get involved in a laborious process

to secure such affirmarive authorizations if théy didn’t have to. Despite a clear cornmunication -

" See State v. WW.J Corp. 138 Wn.2d 595, 980 P.2d 1257 (1999).

" Bxhibit 1 acknowledges that there were 4,194 agency fee payers in 1999/2000. The WEA.
argues that this number was over inclusive, so the Plaintiff has reduced that fumber to 3,200 per year;
a total of 16,000 over five years. Plaintiff then cuts that figure in half [ 8,000] and asks for a penalty of
$25 for each. That results in the requested $200,000 figure. : '

" Even if the court were to accept Ms. Lonnquist’s argument that the WEA stipulated to only
4 violations for the fiscal year 1999 [4 times each year that moneys were not segregated], 4 violations
in. each of 5 years would constitute 20 vialations; if assessed. at $10,000 each that would still
total$200,000. ‘

Superiar Court of Washington
Thursion County, Pepement Seven

A-16



.

_+ 07734701 TUE 14:53 FAX 360 3_,59%874 +>+ Steve O'Ban

oy \
'\‘.f,wi-/

LETTER OPINION [PDC vs WEA] July 31, 2001
Page 7

from the Waéhington State Labor Council in 1997, '¢ the WEA chose to take the easy road. This

court will also observe that even when 1t became completely apparent that this obvious requirement

had been ignored-and the WEA stipulated to “multiple violations” in September of 2000 V' the
WEA could still not bring itself to acknowledge the obvious state of affairs.and attempt to mitigate
and negotiate the outcome of this dispute.

The PDC clearly did not move decisively to enforce this statute either; that is unfortunate.

' The PDC acted only when spurred to do so by citizen complaints. Any excuses that the PDC

doesn’t have to make regilations to explain statute compliance procedures serve no real purpose
at this trial other than to further polarize the parties. The parties here are going to be required to
work together i in the future to accomplish What needs to be done in this case; this court would hope

'that previous communication problerns will not be repeated. The fact remains however, a violation

of statute is still a violation; for example a person who is .speeding down a roadway does not have

the right to speed just because a police officer does not make a traffic stop-when the opportunity

arises. The WEA argument that if the PDC had. told them what was expected, they would have

o i‘mmediately complied, is not compelling to this court. The WEA clearly understood the PDC.

posmon leading to this trial and certainly. did not immediately agree.
RCW 42.17.400(5) gives this court the discretion to treble the amount of judgment as

punitive damages." For the reasons discussed above, I find that the WEA “intentionally” chose

not to comiply with the clear language of the statute; this court imposes a punitive sanction of
$4OO 000 {double the $206 000 civil penaliy assesscd.above] The court will also award the
Plaintiff an appropnatc amount of costs of i mvcst1gat10n aud trial, mcludmg attorney’s fees (to be
determined upon further information from the plaintiff and further hearings, if required]. I will
not, however double [or treb]e] ;hese costs and fees for the reasons discussed above. The pumtwe

* Exhibit 94 at trial.-
Y Exhibit 1

18 (5)' In any action brought under this section, the court may award to the state all costs of

investigation and trial, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court. If the violation is -

found to have been intentional, the amount of the judgment, which shall for this purpese include the
costs, may be trebled as punitive damages. ...

* Superior Court of Washington
Thurston County, Departement Seven
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civil penalty is to punish the illegal actions of the WEA and is not intended as a reward or bonus
to the PDC. ‘

IV. THIS COURT DIRECTS THE WEA TO DEVELOP PROCEDURES TO IMPLEMENT
THE AFFIRMATIVE AUTHORIZATION REQUIREMENTS OF RCW 42.17.760

This court must not only concern itself with the past violations of the statute but must also
{nsure that the statute is followed in the future. During the course of trial and argﬁment, it has -
been suggested by the WEA that this is an extremely difficult task and that other issues make
compliance neatly impossible. The WEA argues that they cannot determine, in advance, the
amounts that they will spend in a givcn year so that agency fee payers will not be charged the
proportional amount. The PDC argues that amounts deterrnined to be “nonchargeable” under the
Hudson analysis don't account for other amounts that are “political ’;. The: PDC has stated that
it is not seeking to have the WEA seek repeated affirmative authorizations and does not ask for
a separate political fund to be set up. This court has already ruled that an affirmative authorization

~ does not necessarz]y have to be in writing. These issues, and- others do appear 10 be substantial
in number and in substance. This court does not suggest that it has a sufficient understanding of
either of the parties positions to fashion a remedy of its own at ths point. On the ather hand, this
court is convinced that a procedure can be developed to assure compliance with the stawte.
Couscquently, thc court will give the WEA a period of 90 days from today’s date to report back
to the court with a proposal to assure compliance.

The PDC, in the court’s opinion, must also bear some responsibility in ttus task. It must
provide the WEA assistance and feedback as the procedures are contemplated. This court expects
that the parties will discuss and negotlate and that consepsus will be reached on as many details
as possible. If the pames cannot agree, each side should provide suggested solutions for this
court’s consideration in arriving at a final procedure.

' At the time of trial, the parties agreed to bifurcate the trial as to certain issues concerning
specific expenditures ot dollar amounts. This court is not prepared to rule at this time as to the

nature of certain contested expenditures which may or may not be “political”. Likewise, as

Superior Court of Washington
Thursion Courty. Departiment Seven
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previously noted, this court declines to rule on issues involving repayment or restitution amounts
owed to individual fee payers.
There are no other issues, so far as the court is aware, that are ripe for this court’s decision
today. |
- CONCLUSION

This court today holds that the WEA has violated RCW 46.17.760 by using agency shop |
fees without affirmative authorization. The Court assesses a civil penalty of $200,000 against the
- WEA, finds that the viélatiog was intentional, and doubles the penalty to $400,000 as a punitive
sanction. The court also orders that appropriate costs for investigation and trial and attorney’s
fees be paid by the respondent; these .amounts are not doubled and shall be specifically
determined after further information and argument, if necessary. Finally, this court directs the
WEA to develop, within 90 days, a plan to comply with the affirmative authorization
requirements of the statute in the future. Because the Petitioner is the prevailing party, the PDC
is directed to prepare and present an order for filing that reflects this court’s decision as set forth

inthis letter opinion.

Sincerely,

Superior Court of Washington
Thucgion Counly. Depariment Seven
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RECEIVED
arrR 1 2 2001

ELLIS LI & McKINSTRY PLLC

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICTOF WASHINGTON

AT TACOMA
GARY DAVENPORT, MARTHA LOFGREN, )
WALT PIERSON, SUSANNAH SIMPSON, )
And TRACY WOLCOTT, )
)
Plaintiffs, individually and ) NO. -~
on behalf of all other ) C O I 5‘ q j
nonmembers similarly )
situated, )
)
Vs. ) NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF
) CIVIL ACTION TO UNITED
WASHINGTON EDUCATION ) STATES DISTRICT COURT
ASSOCIATION, ) UNDER 28 U.S.C. §1441(b)
) (FEDERAL QUESTION)
Defendant. )
)
TO: : The Clerk of the Court

AND TO: Ellis, Li & McKinstry, attorneys for Plaintiffs

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant Washington Education Association
(“WEA) hereby removes the above-captioned action from the Superior Court of the State
of Washington in and for Thurston County to this United States District Court for the
Western District of Washington pursuant to U.S.C. §1441(b) and §1446 et seq. Removal

is proper on the following grounds:

NOTICE OF REMOVAL -1 LAW OFFICES OF
JUDITH A. LONNQUIST, BS..

1218 THIRD AVENUE. SUITE 1500
SEATTLE. WA 98101-3021
A-20 TEL 206.622.2086 FAX 206.233.9165
LOjAL@aol.com
®
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1. Plaintiffs commenced this action on March 19, 2001, alleging Defendant

"WEA violated their rights with respect to expenditures from agency fee payments, and

seeking monetary and injunctive relief. True and correct copies of the Summons and
Complaint are attached as Exhibit A to the Verification of Records for Removal.

2. The first date on which Defendant received. a copy of said Summons and
Complaint was March 20, 2001, when Defendant was served with a copy of same as was
filed in the said State court. Defendant has filed this Notice of Removal within thirty
(30) days after receipt of Summons and Complaint, and has met all the procedural
requirements of 28 U.S.C. §1446. |

3. On April 6, 2001, Defendant filed a Notice of Appearance with the
Thurston County Superior Court, and also served same. Defendant has not yet filed an
Answer. A true and correct copy of the Notice of Appearance is attached as Exhibit B to
the Verification of Records for Removal.

4. This action is a civil action of which this Court has original jurisdiction
under 28 U.S.C. §1331, and is one that mﬁy be removed to this Court by Defendant
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1441(b) bgcause the action arises under the Constitution and laws
of the United States, as shown below:

a. Plaintiffs claim that they, and a class they claim to represent, are
represented by Defendant for collective bargaining purposes and pay agency shop
fees and that Defendant allegedly has made improper expenditures with said
agency fees. See: Complaint, Y11 and §21. Federal courts have held that the use

of agency fees for political and other purposes determined by federal law to be

NOTICE OF REMOVAL -2 LAW OFFICES OF

JUDITH A. LONNQUIST, PS.

1218 THIRD AVENUE. SUITE 1500
SEATTLE. WA 98101-3021
A-21 TEL 206.622.2086 FAX 206.233.9165
LOJAL@aol.com
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“nonchargeable” implicates fee-payers’ First Amendment rights and have devised
extensive procedures and standards governing such matters.

b. Plaintiffs expressly assert federal claims under Chicago Teachers

Union v. Hudson, 475 U.S. 292 (1986), a case based upon Free Speech and

Associational rights in accordance with the First Amendment to the U.S.
Constitution. See: Complaint, 121 and §22.

c. Plaintiffs allege violations of, and misrepresentations with respect
to, Defendant’s “Hudson” notice and procedures (See: Complaint, 22-24) —
which notice and procedures are expressly and exclusively established and
govemned by federal law and a Stipulation and Order entered by the U.S. District
Court for the Western District of Washington at Seattle in Jeff L. Leer, et al. v.
Washington Education Association, No. C96-1612Z (hereinafter “Leer”).

d. Plaintiffs “Second Cause of Action” is preempted by federal law
and/or exclusively within the jurisdiction of the federal courts.

e. Plaintiffs “Third Causé of Action” is preempted by federal law
and/or exclusively within the jurisdiction of the federal courts.

f. Plaintiffs “Fourth Cause of Action” is preempted by federal law
and/or exclusively within the jurisdiction of the %ederal courts.

g. Plaintiffs seek certification of a class (Complaint, p. 8), many of
whom, including named plaintiffs, on information and belief, were part of the
class certified by the U.S. District Court in Leer and are thus barred from seeking

recovery under the terms of the Leer settlement.

NI
o

NOTICE OF REMOVAL -3 AW OFFICES OF |
JUDITH A. LONNQUIST, PS.

1218 THIRD AVENUE. SUITE 1500
SEATTLE, WA 98101-3021
A - 2 2 TEL 206.622.2086 FAX 206.233.9165
LOJALeaol.com
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h. To the extent Plaintiffs seek class relief for alleged
misappropriation of agency fees (Complaint, p. 9), their exclusive remedy is in
the federal courts.

1. Plaintiffs’ request fof injunctive relief (Complaint p. 9) is
governed exclusively by federal law and expressly by the settlement approved by
U.S. District Court Judge Thomas Zilly in Jeff L. Leer, et al. v. Washington

Education Association, Cause No. C96-1612Z.
WHEREFORE, Defendant respectfully requests that the action now pending against it in

the Superior Court of Washington in Thurston County be removed to this Court.
Dated this 12" day of April, 2001.

0/%%%/1%% /

jxldnhA Ln@g,m{ WSBA #06421

Attorney for Defendant

W/% Loy

Halriet K. Strasberg, WSBA #1589
Attormney for Defendant

NOTICE OF REMOVAL -4
LAW OFFICES OF
JUDITH A. LONNQUIST, P.S.

1218 THIRD AVENUE. SUITE 1500
SEATTLE, WA 98101-302!
A-23 TEL 206.622.2086 FAX 206.233.9165
LoJaLeaol.com
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GARY DAVENPORT, MARTHA
LONGREN, WALT PIERSON, SUSANNAH
SIMPSON, and TRACY WOLCOTT,

V.

WASHINGTON STATE EDUCATION
ASSOCIATION,

AECEWED

FLLIS, L! & McKINSTRY PLLC
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BY

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON
AT TACOMA

Case No. C01-5191 FDB

Plaintiffs,
ORDER OF REMAND

Defendant.

This matter is before the court on the removal from state court by defendant Washington

Education Association (WEA) and a motion for remand by plaintiffs Davenport, Longren, Pierson,

Simpson and Wolcott (Davenport).

The plaintiff’s complaint pleads causes of action for violation of RCW 42.17.760,

conversion, breach of fiduciary duty and fraudulent concealment. These causes of action all relate

to circumstances concerning the WEA’s obligations to agency fee payers, some of which are

described by the case Chicago Teachers Union v. Hudson, 475 U.S. 292 ( 1986). However, the

ORDER -1
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Washington State statute cited above creates an additional burden on the WEA which is not
prohibited by or contained within the notices required by Hudson. Plaintiffs seek determinations
under state law, and federal law is only tangential to the questions presented by this lawsuit.
Therefore, it is hereby ORDERED THAT THIS CASE BE REMANDED TO STATE COURT.
Plaintiffs have requested their attorneys fees for the defending against removal. While the
court has discretion to award such costs, it declines to do so in this case. The fact that plaintiff was
not able to proceed with this suit at precisely the same time as a similar matter went forward in state
court will not harm the plaintiffs’ position. The state court matter is progressing in a bifurcated
posture and there is no reason that the instant questions of liability can not be presented to the state

court now that the question of removal is answered. Therefore, plaintiffs request for attorneys fees

is DENIED.

p
DATED this )5 day of May, 2001.
7
S
/

T
/ RANKLIN D. BURGESS

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

ORDER -2




STATE OF WASHINGTON
THURSTON COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

STATE OF WASHINGTON ex rel., NO. 00-2-01837-9
WASHINGTON STATE PUBLIC
DISCLOSURE COMMISSION, STIPULATION AND AMENDED
JUDGMENT
Plaintiff,
Y.
WASHINGTON EDUCATION
ASSOCIATION,
Defendant.

JUDGMENT SUMMARY (RCW 4.64.030)

A. JUDGMENT CREDITOR: State of Washington
B. JUDGMENT DEBTOR: Washington Education Association
C. PRINCIPAL JUDGMENT AMOUNT $975,000
D. INTEREST Principal judgment amount(s) due
and owing shall bear interest at the
rate of 12% per year, and only in the event
that Judgment Debtor fails to make
payments according to the terms listed
below.
F. ATTORNEYS FOR ROBERT M. McKENNA
JUDGMENT CREDITOR Attorney General
: D. THOMAS WENDEL, WSBA #15445
Assistant Attorney General
LINDA A. DALTON, WSBA #15467
STIPULATION AND AMENDED 1 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
JUDGMENT 1125 \ggsrg gftzgl%geel SE

A-26 Olympia, WA 985040100
(360) 664-9006
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Sr. Assistant Attorney General

JUDITH A. LONNQUIST, WSBA #6421
HARRIET K. STRASBERG, WSBA

#15890
STIPULATION
The parties to this stipulation, the Plaintiff, STATE OF WASHINGTON, ex rel.

G. ATTORNEYS FOR
' JUDGMENT DEBTOK

WASHINGTON STATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COMMISSION (“Commission”) and the
Defendant, WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION (“WEAT™), being desirous of
resolving claims arising out of this complaint, hereby enter into the following stipulation:

I. Release: This is a final, conclusive and complete release between the parties hereto, in and
for consideration of the terms, covenants and obligations herein specified, of all claims, causes
of action, damages, costs, fees, known and unknown, anticipated and unanticipated, that were
or could have been raised by the Plaintiff under RCW 42.17.760 and related enforceent
statutes, arising out of or in connection with circumstances addressed in the Complaint in this
matter. The undersigned hereby declares that the terms of this settlernent have been
completely read and are fully understood and voluntarily accepted, for the purpose of making
a full and final compromise, adjustment and settlement of any and all claims, disputed or
otherwise. The Stipulation and Judgment entered by the Court contains the entire agreement

of the parties.

2 Non Admission of Liability: This agreement and compliance with this agreement shall not

be construed as an admission by either party as to the merits of their respective claims or
defenses. Specifically, it shall not be construed as an admission by the WEA of any
liability, or an admission by the WEA of any violation of any order, law, statute, duty, or
contract. _

3. Total Payment: The parties agree that the WEA will pay a total of $975,000 as follows:

a) A civil judgment payable to the State of Washington in the amount of $735,000,
due and payable 30 days from entry of this Stipulation and Amended Judgment.

STIPULATION AND AMENDED 2 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
1125 Washington Street SE

JUDGMENT PO Box 40100
: A-27 Ofympia, WA 98504-0100
(360) 664-5006
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b) To fee payers as outlined below in paragraph 5 with interest in an amount up to
$240,000.” If, after the calculations for payment of rebates to identified fee payers
are completed, any balance remains, then the remainder shall be paid to the State of
Washington. The manner of handling this payment is outlined in paragraph 5
below. The parties stipulate that the process to be used in calculating refunds is
consistent with terms of the court’s injunction.

4. Audit The parties agree that the WEA will produce for the State an audit by Tremper &

Co. within 30 days of the signing of this agreement, which reviews the WEA'’s calculations
of the percentage of WEA’s annual budget utilized for “760 expenses”, as specified in

paragraph 1 of the Permanent Injunction, and the process used by the WEA to calculate the

~ total fee payer payment (paragraph 5 below), and that within 30 days of the receipt of the

Tremper & Co. audit, the State may retain and pay for an auditor to review and validate,
according to generally accepted accounting principles, the process used by the WEA’s
auditor to audit and report as indicated above. This Tremper & Co. audit and the State’s
review process will be completed no later than 60 days from the signing of this Stipulation.

Fee Paver Distribution Method: The parties agree to distribution of up to $240,000 to fee

payers affected by the allegations in this action, unless the amount is adjusted pursuant to

paragraph 3, shall be made as described below:

a. For the WEA fiscal years 03-04, 04-05, 05-06, and 06-07, the WEA agrees to
identify all fee payers, such group to exclude any fee payer who has already
received refunds for nonchargeable expenditures through the WEA’s Hudson/Leer
process. The identified fee payers shall be those employed during part or all of
WEA fiscal years 03-04, 04-05, 05-06, and 06-07.

b. The WEA shall provide the State with confirmation of the percentage of WEA
expenditures used for “760 expenses” for fiscal years 03-04, 04-05, 05-06, and 06-
07 to be refunded to the identified fee payers, subject to the audit and review
specified in paragraph 4 above, with the perceatage to be based on WEA
expenditures occurring two years prior to each school year.

c. The WEA agrees to issue a rebate check payable to each of the identified fee payers
(paragraph 5(a) above) to the last known mailing address for each identified fee
payer.

d. The WEA shall calculate the rebate due each identified fee payer as a percentage of
the fees paid by a fee payer to the WEA equivalent to the percentage of WEA’s
expenditures used for “760 expenditures” for the WEA fiscal years 03-04, 04-05,

05-06, and 06-07.

STIPULATION AND AMENDED 3 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
1125 Washington Street SE
JUDGMENT . PO Box 40100 _

A-28 Olympia, WA 98504-0100
(360) 664-9006
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A rebate check payable to each identified fee payer shall be mailed by first class
mail to the last known address of such fee payer as reflected on the list described in
paragraph 5(a), (¢) and (d) above. Such mailings, which shall be separate from any
other materials, will be prominently marked on the outside with the words
“IMPORTANT LEGAL DOCUMENT ENCLOSED.” The WEA shall note on
each rebate check that it is valid for only six (6) months. The WEA shall bear all
costs and expenses associated with making payments to the fee payers.

Once the calculations have been made and the fee payer rebate checks issued, the
WEA shall send the State any difference between the $240,000 and actual amount

needed for rebates to the identified fee payers.

The parties will agree -on the content and terms of a joint written statement to the
fee payers for whom rebate checks are issued, which will be included with the
rebate checks that WEA will mail to the identified fee payers. The joint statement
shall also be posted to the WEA’s website. The joint statement will include
language providing that fee payers who have a question about how their rebate was
calculated or the process for reviewing that individual calculation are to contact the
WEA for information and any calculation review process. The State has no
authority or obligation to mediate or sanction the rebate calculations.

The date for mailing the rebate checks to the identified fee payers shall be no later
than 120 days from the date of the completion of the audit and review process as
described in paragraph 2 above or no more than six (6) months after the agreement

Is signed, whichever is earlier.

In the event that a fee payer’s mailed rebate is returned to the WEA for any reason,
the WEA will first verify that the address to which the refund was mailed
corresponds with the last known address on file with the WEA. If not, then the
clerical error will be corrected and the rebate check and joint statement will be
mailed to the correct address. If the original address was correct, then the WEA
shall hold such rebate for a period of six (6) months. If no claim to the rebate is
made by the named fee payer, or his or her heirs, assigns or successors in interest,
then the WEA will follow the procedure outlined in paragraph 5(j) outlined below.
If a check payable to a fee payer is not returned but also not cashed within six 6)
months from the date the check was mailed, then the WEA, with respect to such
uncashed checks, will follow the procedure outlined in paragraph 5(j) below.

Once six (6) months has elapsed after return to the WEA of a correctly addressed
rebate as undeliverable or refused, or after unreturned checks are mailed but remain
uncashed, the WEA agrees to deposit with the Unclaimed Property Section of the
state Department of Revenue (“DOR™) the value of the returned or uncashed
rebates. To facilitate the reporting of any uncashed or returned checks as unclaimed
property to DOR, the WEA will provide, at a minimum, the following information
to DOR with respect to each uncashed or returned check: Last and first name of the
fee payer, last krown address, payment amount, and check number. The
information will be provided in an electronic format using the National Association
of Unclaimed Property Administrators (NAUPA) Revised standard (NAUPA 1)
file format. The information will be provided at the time the transfer of funds
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representing uncashed or returned checks occurs. The transfer of any returned or
uncashed fee payer rebate to DOR shall be subject to the provisions of RCW 63.29.

6. Injunction: The parties agree that, upon the execution of this stipulation and judgment, the
Permanent Injunction filed in this matter on December 3, 2001 in the Thurston County

Superior Court should be dismissed.

7. Joint Press Release: On or after the date the Amended Judgment is signed by this court, the

parties, through the undersigned, agree to issue a mutually agreed upon joint press release
announcing the resolution of this matter including the terms of the stipulation.

8. Disputes: The parties agree that in the event of disputes between the parties regarding the
terms of this Stipulation and Amended Judgment, they will first meet and confer in an
attempt to resolve the issue before initiating further proceedings.

9. Judgment: The parties acknowledge that there has been no final adjudication of claims and
defenses in this case other than the issue of the statute’s constitutionality and agree that the
Judgment, including the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law contained therein,
entered in this matter on December 3, 2001, should be vacated and this Amended Judgme;xt

submitted in their place, superseding these documents in all respects.

DATED this 3/ % day of L2 Cﬁmbéfﬁoos.

ROBERT M. McKENNA
Attorney General 7
/

' o /."' '/

D. THOMAS WENDEL, WSBA #15445
Assistant Attorney General

/ Dbhn. (o D/ #M F 5%%««

LINDA A. DALTON,)W SBA #15467 HARRIET K. ST‘)RASBERG

Sr. Assistant Attorney General WSBA #15890
Attorneys for Plaintiff Attorneys for Defendant
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AMENDED JUDGMENT

THIS MATTER came on regularly before the undersigned judge of the above-entitled
Court, and the Plaintiff, STATE OF WASHINGTON, PIjBLIC DISCLOSURE
COMMISSION, appearing through its attorneys of record, ROBERT M. McKENNA, Attorney
General, D. THOMAS WENDEL, Assistant Attorney General., and LINDA A. DALTON,
Senior Assistant Attorney General, and the Defendant, WASHINGTON EDUCATION
ASSOCIATION, appearing through its attorneys of record, JUDITH A. LONNQUIST and -
HARRIET K. STRASBERG, and the parties having apprised the court of their agreement to
the entry of this revised judgment for the purpose of settling and compromising this action
brought under RCW 42.17. The terms of their resolution include payment of funds to the State
of Washington and rebates to fee payers under the provisions of RCW 42.17. The court,

having reviewed and considered the records and files herein, and the above Stipulation of the

parties, and having found the resolution to be a just and proper resolution of this matter, and

A being otherwise fully advised in the premises, now, therefore:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant, WASHINGTON EDUCATION
ASSOCIATION, shall be and is hereby assessed a total of Seven Hundred, Thirty Five

Thousand Dollars ($735,000) to be paid within 30 days of the execution of this Judgment;
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendant, WASHINGTON EDUCATION

ASSOCIATION, ‘shall pay no more than $240,000 in accordance with the provisions of
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the foregoing Stipulation, which are incorporated herein by reference
into this Judgment as though fully set forth;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the prior Judgment entered in this matter on
December 3, 2001 is vacated and this Amended Judgment supersedes it in all respects;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Permanent Injunction previously entered in this

case on December 3, 2001 is dismissed; and

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

STIPULATION AND AMENDED 6 AL O
ington Str
JUDGMENT PO Box 40100
A-31 Olympia, WA 98504-0100

(360) 664-9006




IT IS FURTHER ORDERED tﬁat in the event of a dispute between the parties
regarding this Stipulation and Amended Judgment, they shall first meet and confer in an |
attempt to resolve the issue prior to initiating any further proceedings with this Court.

DONE IN OPEN COURT this 3 day of [)@c ,2008.

&dﬂm ﬁ &42@242
JUDGWSSION]?R

Presented By:

ROBERT M. McKENNA
Attorney General

D. THOMAS WENDEL, WSBA #15445
Assistant Attorney General

L ;’D,JJ‘{‘I/A_ | éw (D’W
LINDA A. DALTON, WABA #15467

Senior Assistant Attorney General
Attomneys for Plaintiff

Stipulated to, and approved as to form; notice
of presentation is not waived:

« P _ :
HARRIET K. STRASBERG, WSBA #15890
Attorneys for Defendant

STIPULATION AND AMENDED 7 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
R 1125 Washington Streel SE
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‘The Honorable Gary R. Tabor
Hearing date: November 15, 2001

STATE OF WASHINGTON
THURSTON COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

State of Washington ex rel. Public | NO. 00-2-01837-9
Disclosure Commission,

Plaintiff, _
" FINDINGS OF FACT AND
V. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Washington Education Association,

Defendant.

" THIS COURT having conducted a trial of the above-captioned matter between May 14,
2001 and May 18, 2001, Plaintiff fepresented by its attorneys Christine O. Gregoire, Attorney
General, D. Thomas Wendel, Assistant Attorney General, and Richard Heath, Special Assistant
Attorney General, and Defendant reprgsented by its attorneys, Judith Lonnquist, Harriet
Strasberg, Michael Gawley and Aimee Iverson, and the Court having received documentary
and testimonial éyidence, and having considered the arguments and authorities submitted by
counsel for the parties, and having made certain rulings of law in an Order Regarding Cross
Motions for Summary Judgment, entered on or about May 10, 2001, and having issued its

Letter Opinion on or about July 31, 2001, both of which are incorporated herein by this

FINDINGS OF FACT AND 1 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
Torts Division

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 629 Woodland Square Loop SE
: PO Box 40126
Olympia, WA 98504-0126
(360) 459-6600
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reference, now, therefore, the  Court hereby enters the following findings of fact and

conclusions of law from the trial of this matter:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Public Disclosure Commission, represented herein ex rel. by the State of Washington,
is an agency of the State of Washington.

2. Defendant Washington Education Association (WEA) is a labor organization that
represents public school employees in the State of Washington.

3. WEA manages its finances m fiscal years that begin on September | and end on August 31,
and. fiscal years are referred to by reference to the second calendar year in the fiscal Sfear
(e.g. the fiscal year from September 1, 1995.to August 31, 1996 is referred-to as fiscal year
1996).

4. WEA, through the collective bargaining process, has negotiated contracts with various
school districts requiring collection of fees from non-members of the WEA who work in
bargaining units covered by the such contracts (“agency fee payers”), which are referred £o
as “dgency fees”. Agency fee payers pay fees equal to the dues paid by WEA members,
except that fee payers do not pay Community Outreach (“COP”) assessments. COP funds
were not part of this lawsuit. |

5. Fee payers who object to the amount of agency fees receive a refund based upon the ratio
of “chargeable” to “nonchargeable” expernses — part of the so-called “Hudson” process
(Chicago Teachers Union v. Hudson, 475 U.S. 292, 106 S.Ct. 2641 (1988)).
“Chargeable” fees are those expenditures that are germane to collective bargaining.
Expenditures to influence an election or to operate a political committee are included in
“nonchargeable” expenditures.

6. Only WEA members have voting rights within the WEA; as nonmembers, fee payers have

FINDINGS OF FACT AND ' 2 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
Torts Divisi
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 629 Woodland Square Loop SE
PO Box 40126
Olympia, WA 98504-0126
(360) 459-6600
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10.

11.

12.

14.

15.

16.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND 3

neither voting rights, nor any right to determine the amount or use of the agency fees that
they are required to pay to the WEA.

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA received agency fees from between
3000 and 4000 agency fee payers.

For.each WEA fiscal year
payers for WEA were the same amount as the annual dues collected from comparably
situated members.

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA received no affirmative authorization
from any agency fee payer for the use of their agency fees for contributions or expenditures
to influence an election or operate a political committee; since 2001, WEA has held all
agency fees in escrow, without making expenditures therefrom.

The fees received from agency fee payers are quite small in amount and as a percentage of
WEA’s total revenue.

The amounté expended by WEA to influence an election or to operate a political committee
are a small percéntage of its overall expenditures.

In each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA had sufficient reserves to more than

offset the fee payer amounts in question.

. For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA commingled agency fees in its general

operating fund with member dues and other moneys.

Even if agency fees had been segregated, any surplus at the end of the fiscal year would
have reverted to the general fund.

For each WEA fiscal years frOﬁ 1996 to 2000, WEA did not separately account for the use
of age;ncy fees that were commingled in its general operating fund with member dues and
other moneys.A

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, moneys were used from the WEA general

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON
Torts Division

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 629 Woodland Square Loop SE

. PO Box 40126
Olympia, WA 98504-0126
(360) 459-6600
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

operating fund for expenditures or contributions' to influence an election or operate a .
political committee, such as direct and in-kind contributions to political committees, and
communications to support or oppose other political positions.

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA made expenditures from the WEA

general fund for expenditures or contributions to influence an election or operate a political

Any distinction between collectiﬁg an agency fee on the revenue side, and expending
monies for a particular purpose on the expense side, is forever obscured when the funds
collected are commingled into a general fund.

Under the circumstances of this case, where fee payers must pay the same amount annually
as members pay in dues, and the agency fees are commingled with dﬁes in the general
fund, it is unfair to use the fees, in whole or in part, in proportions and purposes different
from the use of dues. |

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA used agency fees, from each agency
fee payer who did not receive any refund of part of their fees, for expenditures or
contributions to influence an election or operate a political committee.

A total of approximately 8,000 fee-payers for the WEA fiscal years from 1996 to 2000, is a
fair and reasonable estimate of the number of fee-payers. A penalty of $25 for each of said '
fee payers is reasonable, and results ini a penalty of $200,000. In any event, for each WEA
fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA used agency fees at least four times to make
expenditures or contributions to influence an election or operate a political committee,
which results in the same penalty amount: $200,000.

For each WEA fiscal years from 1996 to 2000, WEA intentionally made multiple
expenditures ﬁom the WEA general operating fund for expenditures or contributions to

influence an election or operate a political committee.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND 4 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Torts Division

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ' 629 Woodland Square Loop SE

PO Box 40126
Olympia, WA 98504-0126
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32.

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA was aware of RCW 42.17.760 and that
the statute foreclosed the use of agency fees for contributions or expenditures to influence
an election or operate a political committee, without the affirmative authorization of the fee
payer.

After executing a Stipulation of Violations with the Plaintiff, WEA chose not to attempt to
mitigate or negotiate the outcome of- the dispute. WEA clearly understood the PDC
position leading to this trial and did not immediately agree.

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA could not reasonably have believed
that its use of agency fees complied with the requirements of RCW 42.17.760.

WEA stipulated and admitted, in September, 2000, that it had committed multiple
vi’olations of RCW 42.17.760 during its fiscal year 2000.

A reasonable fine for multiple violations of RCW 42.17.760, for the WEA fiscal years
1996 — 2000, is two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00).

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA’s use of agency fees for contributions
and/or expenditures to influence elections and/or operate political committees, without
affirmative authorization from any fee payers, was intentional.

WEA intentionally chose not to comply with RCW 42.17.760.

The int-entioﬁal violations of RCW 42.17.760 justify a doubling of the fine to four hundred
thousand dollars (§400,000.00).

Irreparable harm will result if WEA continues to use agency fees without affirmative
authorization from individual fee payers for expenditures or contributions to influence an
election or operate a political committee.

This Court did not have sufficient understandihg of the parties’ positions to fashion its own

remedy to assure compliance with the statute at the time of the Letter Opinion; however,

the parties are well suited to such task. The Court will consider suggested solutions

FINDINGS OF FACT AND » 5 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Torts Division

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 629 Woodland Square Loop SE

PO Box 40126
Olympia, WA 98504-0126
(360) 4596600




[\

AW

(Wa)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

33.

8.

ptoposed by the parties. ‘ ' -
The State of Washington should be awarded its reasonable costs and attorney fees for
prosécution of this action; however, the costs and fees should not be doubled or trebled due

to the intentional conduct of WEA.. -

TTQYW T A XX

CONCLUSIONS GF LA

. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties to this action.

RCW 42.17.760 prohibits a labor organization from using agency fees paid by an agency
fee payer for expenditures or contributions to influence-an election or operate a political
committee, unless it first obtains affirmative authorization to do so from the individual fee
payer.

The plaintiff State of Washington, ex rel. Public Disclésure Commission, is authorized to
bring actions to enforce the provisions of RCW Chapter 42.17, including RCW 42.17.760.
RCW 42.17.390, and RCW 42.17.400.

The WEA is a labor organizatioﬁ as thaf term 1s used. in RCW 42.17.760.

Under the circumstances presented by this case, when agency fees were commingled with
other funds in the genera;l treasury, expenditure of any general treasury monies to influence

an election or support a political committee results in use of a proportionate share of

" agency fees for such purposes.

The use of an individual fee payer’s agency fees to influence an election or operate a
political committee, without the affirmative authorization of the individual, is a violation of
RCW 42.17.760.

An expenditure or contribution that is made to influence an election or operate a political
committee, using agency shop fees without the affirmative authorization of the iﬁdividual
fee payer, is aAviolation of RCW 42.17.760.

For each WEA fiscal year from 1996 to 2000, WEA committed multiple violations of

FINDINGS OF FACT AND 6 . A'ITORN:E-Y GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

Torts Division

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW : 629 Woodland Square Loop SE
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11.

RCW 42.17.390(3) authorizes this Court to impose fines in' the amount of up to ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for each violation of any provisibn of RCW: Chapter 42.17,
including RCW 42.17.760.

This Court is authorized to impose 2 fine against WEA under the Findings above, in the
amount of two hundred thousand dollars (3200,000.00) for violations of RCW 42.17.760.
RCW 42‘.17.400(5) authorizes this Court to impose up to treble the amount of the

" judgment, if the violations have been found to be intentional, and. the fine imposed upon

12.

13.

WEA is hereby doubled to four hundred thousand dollars (§400,000.00).

RCW 42.17.400(S) authorizes this Court to award to the State all costs of investigation and

‘trial, and this Court hereby Orders the WEA to pay to the State all reasonable costs of

investigation and trial in an amount to be proven by-the State at a later time.

RCW 42'.17.390(6) authorizes this Court to enjoin any person to prevent the doing of any
act prohibited in RCW Chapter 42.17, or to compel the performance of any such act, and
the Court hereby Orders WEA to undertake measures to comply with RCW 42.17.760 as
will be specified by further Order of this Court.

i

A

7

1
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DONE IN OPEN COURT this %) day of}Qeéy%er, 2001.

by: v _

CHRISTINE O. GREGOIRE : Ly
Attorney General '

-

Presented, without waiver of objections, APPROVED AS TO FORM; NOTICE
. OF PRESENTATION WAIVED:

D. THOMAS WENDEL, WSBA#15445
Assistant Attorney General '
Attorneys for Plaintiff

FINDINGS OF FACT AND 8 . ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Harriet Strasbege, WSBA #1580
Attorneys for Defendant

Torts Division
629 Woodland Square Loop SE
PO Box 40126
Olympia, WA 98504-0126
(360) 459-6600




( ‘N THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION I
GARY DAVENPORT, MARTHA No. 28375-1-11 ®w o
LOFGREN, WALT PIERSON, SN =
SUSANNAH SIMPSON, and TRACY ) = 5
WOLCOT, g N7 Z0-
=B 5%
Respondents, individually = = Spas
and on behalf of all other RULING GRANTING REVIEW S, =
nonmembers similarly AND DENYING TR x(-n-'
situated, : CONSOLIDATION RE : ?V‘J‘E
. _HEGE! |
: | ELLIS, LI & McKINSTRY PLLC
WASHINGTON EDUCATION | {0 G 2002 |
ASSOCIATION, wm Py
: - ' , Ci8i00:1,12,3,2814;5)F
Petitioner. ' ‘ \ -

| Washington State Edlﬁcatioh Associéfion (WEA) filed é motion fbr:aiscretionaw
review of the Consoﬁdéted Order on Pending Motions (Consolidated Order) issued by the
Thurston County Superior' Court. Respondénts Gary Davénport, et al. (Davenport)
oppose discretionary review. 4

in August 2000, tﬁe' Evergreen Freedom Foundation filed a letter of compléint with
the Public Disclosure Commission (PDC), pursuant to RCW 42.17.400(4), alleging that

WEA had violated RCW 42.17.760, which provides:

A labor organization may not use agency shop fees paid by an
individual who is hot a member of the organization to make contributions or

expenditures to influence an election or to operate a political committee,
unless affirmatively authorized by the individual.

In October 2000, on behalf of PDC, the State commenced an action against WEA,

 pursuant to RCW 42.17.400(1)." That case was tried to Judge Gary Tabor, who ruled WEA



28375:1-

had collected and used agency shop fees in violation of RCW 42.17.760. In his letter
opinion,Adated July 31, 2001, Judge Tabor assessed a civil penalty of $200,000 égainst
WEA and doubled thét penal‘ty as a punitive sanction. WEA appealed Judge Tabor's
ruling. Stafe ex fel. PDC v. WEA, No. 28264-0-I1. That appeal fs in the briefing stage.

On September 26, 2001, Davenport, along with four other p.ublic school employeés
who were ndt members of WEA but‘had-paid agency shop fees in amounts equai to union
dues, filed én Aménded Complaint alleging four causes of action: (1) violation of RCW '
42.17.760 (First Cause of Action); (2) conversion (Second Cause of Abtion); (3) breach of
fiduciary duty (Third Cause of Action); and (4) fraudulent concealment (Fourth Cause of
Action). Davenport also sought class action status under CR 23. _
| WEA moved to dismiss, pursuant to CR 12(c); arguing: (1) Davenport has no -
private ‘rAight of action regarding violations of RCW 42.17.760; (2) WEA aid not convert
Davenport's agency shop fees because those fees belong fo WEA by statute; and (3) the
claims of conversion, breach of fiduciary duty, and fraudulent concealment were -
subsumed under the duty of fair representation, which has a stafute of limitations of six
months. Davenport opposed the mction io dismiss. and:scugh% class certification.

Judge Daniel Berschauer ruled on the motions in his Consolidated Order as
follows. He denied WEA's motion to dismiés, except as to the Third Cause of Action,
ruling that Davenport had an implied right of action regérding violations of RCW 42.17.760.
He ruled that the statute of limitations for the First Céuse of Action was five years,
pursuant-to RCW 42.17.410, and that the statute of limitations for the Second and Fourth

Causes of Action was three years, pursuant to - RCW 4:16.080. - He granted class

&—42
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certification as to the First and Second Causes of Actidn, pursuant to CR 23(b)(3), but
denied class certification as to the Fourth Cause-of Action. He stayed.the proceedings to
allow WEA time to seek discretionary review of the Consolidated Order. Finally, he made
_the following certification, pursuant to RAP 2.3(b):
ACCORDINGLY, THE COURT HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT this
Consolidated Order involves controlling questions of law as to which there
.. :are substantial grounds for differences of opinion and that immediate review
of this Consolidated Order would materially-advance the ultimate termination ,
of this litigation. ' ' '
Motion for Discretionary Review, Appendix at A5.
WEA argues that discretionary review is appropriate under RAP 2.3(b)(2) because
“the superior court has commiﬁed probable error and the decision of the superior court
substantially alters the status quo or substantially limits the freedom of a party to-'act." its
‘primary contention is that the superior' court erred in ruling that Davenport has an impllied
private right of action under which he can claim violation of RCW 42.17.760. WEA
contends PDC and the State have the exclusive authority to enforce provisions of chapter
42.17 RCW, including RCW 42.17.760. RCW 42.17.360(5), RCW 42.17.360(7) and RCW
. 42,17.400(1).. WEA notes that RCW. 42.'17.400'(.,4) provides one exception to PDC's
exclusive enforcement authority: |
Any person who has notified the attomey general and- the prosecuting
attorney in the county in which the violation occurred in writing that there is
reason to believe that some provision of this chapter is being or has been
violated may himself bring in the name of the state any of the actions
- (hereinafter referred to as a citizen’s action) authorized under this chapter.
This citizen's action may be brought only if the attomey general and the
-prosecuting attorney have failed to commence an action.hereunder within.

B forty-five days after such notice and such person has thereafter further
. notified the attorney. general and prosecuting attorney that said person will



28375111

commence a citizen's action within ten days upon their failure so to do, and -

the attorney general and prosecuting attorney have in fact failed to bring

such action within ten days of recaipt of said second notice. If the person

who brings the citizen’s action prevails, the judgment awarded shall escheat

to the state, but he shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the state of

Washington for costs and attomey's fees he has incurred: PROVIDED, That

in the case of a citizen’s action which is dismissed and which the court also

finds was brought without reasonable cause, the court may order the person

commencing the action to pay all costs of trial and reasonable attorney's

fees incurred by the defendant. '

WEA érgués the only possible private right of action regarding an alleged violation
of RCW 42.17.760 is a citizen's action under RCW 42.17.400(4). WEA further argues
Davenport cahnot maintain a citizen's action under RCW 42.17.400(4) because he did not
pfovide wriﬁen notice of the.alleged violations to the attorney genéral. Even if he had,
WEA argues Davenport could not commence a citizen’s action because PDC has already
commenced an-enforcement action against WEA for the alleged violations of RCW
42.17.760. -

Davenport responds that he has an implied right of action to enforce RCW
42.17.760, because a cause of action will bé implied from a statutory scheme if:

-a) the plaintiff is “within the class for whose ‘especial’ benefit the statute was
enacted;” b) the “legislative intent, explicitly or implicitly, supports creating or

denying a remedy;” and c) “implying a remedy is consistent with the
underlying purpose of the legislation.”

’W/nvgert V. Yellow Freight Sys., Inc., 104 Whn. App. 583, 591 (2000), review granted, 144
Wn.2d 1009 (2001) (employees denied 10-minute rest periods during overtime hours have
implied right of action under chapter 49.12 RCW to seek compensation because without
an implied right of: action, employers could-deny rest periods with impunity), (quoting

‘Bennett-v.- Hardy, 113 Wn.2d 912, 920-21 (1990) (employees allegedly terminated
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. because they were 60 years-old have implied. right. of action under RCW 49:44.090
because without-implied creation of a remedy, the statute would be. me-aninglese)). :
Davenport contends that as an employee, who'is required to pay agency shop fees,

he is W|th|n the especial class for whom RCW 42:17.760 was enacted. He contends the

. Ieglslatlve mtent of RCW 42.17.760 supports creating animplied right of action. Finally, he

contends lmplylng a right of action is consistent with the undarlying m.rpose of RCW
42, 17 760 He further contends that the Supreme Court has already created an implied
right of action under chapter 42.17 RCW in Nelson v. McC/atchy Newspapers, Inc., 131
Wh.2d 523, 530- 34 cert. denied, 522 U.S. 866 (1997).

Neither Nelson, Wingert nor Bennett clearly demonstratés that Davenpor’g has an
imblied right ef action to allege violations of RCW 42.17.760. In Nelson, the Supreme
Court appears to have assumed that Nelson had a right of action to allege a violation of -
RCW 42.17.680(2), which provides in pertinent part that “[nJo employer or labor
organization may discriminate against an ofﬁeer or employee in the terms or conditions of
employnee'nt fer Ce eupporfing or opposing a candidate, ballot proposition political party,
or political committee.” Thus Ne/son does not necessanly stand for the proposition that
lmplled rights of action exist as to all alleged violations of chapter 42 17 RCW. Further, in
Nelson, I/anert and Bennett, the right of action was implied to allow an employee to

'allege violations of rights owed to them by their employers by statute or regulation.
Nelson, 1'31 Wh.2d at 530-31 (RCW 42.17.680(2) “prohibits discriminatipn based on an
employee's ‘supporting or opposing a candidate, ballot proposition, political - party, or

political committee™); Wingert, 104 Wn. App. at 58’(’.(V\[AQ.'296-1-96-092,(4)2provides “no
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employee shall berequired to work more than three hours without a [10-minute] rest
period”); Bennett, 113 Wn.2d at 921 (RCW 49.44.090 “makes it an unfair employment
_precticeto discriminate against an-employee who is between the ages of 40 and 70 based
on her. age”). In contrast, RCW 42.17.760 does not protect -employees from imbroper
actione of emb'loyers or labor organizatiOne. Nor does it regulate when or how agency
- shop fees are paid ta laber organizations, RCW 42.17.760 only regulates the spending of
‘agency shop fees, prohibiting' -labor organizations from: using- such fees “to m'avke
contributions ‘or expendltures to influence an electlon or to operate a polltlcal committee,
unless affirmatively authorized by the mduvudual "

Davenport also responds that wuthout an lmplied right of action, he weuld have no
- remedy. for violations of RCW 42 17.760. He argues that bringing a citizen’s action under
RCW 42.17. 400(4) would provide him no remedy (other than recouplng his attorney fees)
because any judgment he obtained in such a citizen's action would escheat to the State.
He also argues that RCW 42.17.400 does not provide the sole means: of enforéement of
RCW 42.17.760, because RCW 42.17.400 was enacted: as part of. Initietive 276 in 1972;
 while RGW 42.17.760 was enacted as part of Initiative 134 in 1992, |
| ' Davenport's additional arguments' do not provide clear support for an implied right
- of action. to allege violations of RCW 42.17.760. As noted above, RCW 42.17.760
appears to be a limitation on how a labor organization can spend agency shop fees, not a
limitation on how it collects agency shop fees. As such, it is not clear.that the drafters of
Initiative 134 intended to provide agency shop fee payers to have a private right of action.

While the statement of intent in Initiative 134 includes “[rleduc]ing] the influence of large
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oArganizAatipnal contributors,” it does not address the rights of - agency shop fee payers.
Laiws of 1993, ch. 2, §-2A(_2)A, codified as RCW 42.17.620(2)._,Davenport’s a,rgu‘menfthat :
: RCW 42.17.400 cannot be read as foreclosing an implied r_ight of action under RCW
42.17.760 is undercut by two factors. First, Initiative 134 specifically placed RCW -
' 42.17.‘760A(Léws of 1993, ch. 2, § -16) in chabter 42;17 RCW. Laws of 1993, ch. 2, §
‘ 53(_1). RCW ,42.-1 7..409(_4), ,v,vh‘i.ch.had beén enacted 20 years prior (L_aws of 1 973,ch. 1, §
40(4)), .appears to provide the enforcement mechanism for persons who have “reason to
believe that'some'.provision of ;‘his'Chapte.r is being or has been violated.” (Emphasis
added)v -Second, RCW 42.17.410, which provides the five-year statute of limitations upon
which Davenport'reﬁes, ‘was also part of Initiative 276 en_aqted_ 20 years prior. Laws of:
-1973, ch. 1, § 41. lt_ appAearsA to be inconsistent to argue that RCW 42.17.400(4) does not
. apply to RCW 42.17.760, but that RCW 42.17.410 does apply to RCW 42.17.760, when
RCW 42.17.400(4) and RCW 42.17.410 were enacted at the same time.

In summary, it appears. that the superior court committed probable error in ruling
that Davenport has an implied right of action to allege violations of RCW 42.17.760.
.Furthe.r, .the finding of an impliedf right of action subsfantially alters the status quo as
between WEA and agency shop fee payers. Givén the pfobable error, the alteration of the
's,tatus quo, and the superior court's certification that immediate review of the Consolidated
Order may materially advance the ultimate termination of this litigation, discretionary
- re\}iew is appropriate under RAP:'2.3(l.))(2)._ o
‘ - WEA also argues the superipr bourt com'mitted‘probable error in refusing to dismiss

Davenport's conversion claim, in adopting a five-year statute of limitations for the RCW

A-47
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42.17.760 claims, i‘n adopting a three-year statute of Iimitationé for the conversion and
- wrongful concealment claims, and in certifying classes for the First and Second Caus.esA of
Action. These rulings are subsidiary to or interconnected with the finding of an implied
right of action under RCW 42.17.760, and so this court should review them in cohjUnction
with the finding of an implied .right of action.” Accordingly, it is hereby

; .'ORDERED that WEA's motion for discretionary review o.f‘tﬁe Consolidated Order is
- granted. WEA's request to consolid‘ate this p'roCeeding- with Stafe ex’ }el. PDC v. WEA,
" No. 28264-0-ll, is denied wi.thdut prejudice as premature. _
DATED this. < dayof M cin | . 2002.

Eric B. Schmidt
Court Commissioner

‘cc.  Judith A. Lonnquist
Harriet K. Strasberg
Steven T. O'Ban
Jeanne Brown
Milton L. Chappell
Hon. Daniel J. Berschauer
Thurston County Superior Court
Cause number: 01-2-00519-4



